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PART I

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardkimg statements within the meaning of Section 8fLthe Securities Exchange Act of
1934. Such forward-looking statements include, agnathers, those statements including the wordséetsy’ “anticipates,” “intends,”
“believes,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “continue” andsimilar language or the negative of such termstioer comparable terminology. Although
we believe that the expectations reflected in tdmevérd-looking statements are reasonable, HealthB8tis actual results may differ
significantly from those projected in the forwambking statements. Factors that might cause oribom to such differences include, but are
not limited to, those discussed in the section KFactors” in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Foli-K and elsewhere in this document. In
addition, factors that we are not currently awdreonld harm our future operating results. You stiaarefully review the risks described in
other documents HealthStream files from time tcetimith the Securities and Exchange Commission. &fewcautioned not to place undue
reliance on forward-looking statements, which spaaly as of the date of this Annual Report on FarK. HealthStream undertakes no
obligation to publicly release any revisions to thevard-looking statements or reflect events ocwinstances after the date of this document.

” i, ” o ”ou

Item 1. Business
OVERVIEW AND HISTORY

HealthStream, Inc. (HealthStream or the Compangyides Internet-based learning and research sakifir healthcare organizations—all
designed to assess and develop the people the¢dpétient care which, in turn, supports the invproent of business and clinical outcomes.
Our learning products are used by healthcare orgtions to meet a broad range of their trainingifeeation, and development needs, while
our research products provide our customers infoomabout patients’ experiences, workforce engagg@nphysician relations, and
community perceptions of their services. Healthétrs customers include healthcare organizations;mpaceutical and medical device
companies, and other participants in the healthicaigstry. Our customer base across both our legraind research business units includes
over 2,600 healthcare organizations (predominatelite-care facilities) throughout all 50 states.

Our core learning product is the HealthStream Liegr@enter™ (HLC), our proprietary learning platfoprovided through the Internet via
software-as-a-service (SaaS) model. At Decembe2(@®ll1, HealthStream had approximately 2.75 miléontracted, primarily hospital-based
subscribers, to the HLC platform, which include72wbillion subscribers already implemented and @nll8on subscribers in the process of
implementation. We deliver educational activitiesl &raining courseware to our customers throughHth€ platform. Our research products
and service offerings include quality and satiséacsurveys, data analyses of survey results, #met oesearch-based measurement tools
focused on patients, physicians, employees, andb®enof the community. Our core research produtttéPatient Insights™ survey, which
accounts for approximately 75% of our research gpeotusiness based on revenue.

As we place greater emphasis on offering our custemew and innovative ways of assessing and dgwngldheir workforces, simulation is
becoming a growing part of our product portfolie.June 2010, we announced a collaborative arrangtemith Laerdal Medical A/S (Laerdal
Medical), a leader in healthcare simulation, tovjde a suite of products for distributing trainisignulations and scenarios directly over the
Internet and managing simulation centers worldw&lmStore®, which allows simulation customers tmgke, license and download scenarios
directly to manikins over the Internet, was laurtcivethe first quarter of 2011. SimManager, an igapion for managing simulation centers,
shares the same platform with our HLC, and wasdhed in early 2012. We have a long-term relatigns¥ith Laerdal and have been a
distributor of its HeartCod®! product line for tlaest five years. HeartCod®  uses task based maniiahsssist healthcare professionals in
studying, training, and testing for what is comnydkihown as cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR)ifoeation.

Headquartered in Nashville, Tennessee, the Comyasyincorporated in 1990 and began providing itsrivet-based solutions in 1999 and its
survey and research solutions in 2005. Includingdditional office in Laurel, Maryland, HealthStredad 408 full-time and 96 part-time
employees as of December 31, 2011. HealthStrearavudged from a company with an initial focus ooheologybased training to a compe
providing outcomes-focused learning and researtthisos to the nation’s healthcare providers.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

According to the deputy director of the Nationalaile Statistics Group at the Centers for Medicaue lledicaid Services (CMS), spending in
the healthcare industry reached approximately 82i5n in 2009, or 17.6% of the U.S. gross doneproduct. Hospital care expenditures
accounted for approximately 30% of the $2.5 tnilliadustry. Approximately 14.3 million professioaare employed in the healthcare segr
of the domestic economy, with approximately 5.0ionl employed in acute-care hospitals, our primtarget market for our learning and
research products. As of December 31, 2011, apmately 2.75 million healthcare professionals wergssribers to our Internet-based HLC
platform, which include 2.57 million subscribersegdy implemented and 0.18 million subscriberhégrocess of implementation.

All of the 5.0 million hospital-based healthcarefeissionals that work in the nation’s approxima&00 acute-care hospitals are required by
federal mandates and accrediting bodies to compkeitgng in a number of areas. This training imda safety training
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mandated by both the Occupational Safety and Héalthinistration (OSHA) and The Joint Commission {jateependent, not-for-profit
organization that accredits and certifies healthcaganizations and programs in the United Stasessjvell as training on patient information
confidentiality required under the Health InsuraRoetability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).

In hospitals, staffing issues and personnel sheg&igive also contributed to the need for facilitgdal workforce development as well as
additional assessment and competency based traffdngxample, the American Hospital AssociatiqiklA) report “Workforce 2015:
Strategy Trumps Shortage” (January 2010) estinthtgghe shortfall of physicians in 2020 will bepapximately 109,000 and the shortage of
registered nurses in 2025 will be the equivaler@ff,000 full-time employees. We believe that adffgtraining and education for hospital
personnel is increasingly being utilized as a m&@rand recruitment incentive.

Many healthcare professionals use continuing edutca keep abreast of the latest developmentsraget licensing and certification
requirements. Continuing education is requiredhfmses, emergency medical services personnelrdsponder personnel, radiologic
personnel, and physicians. Pharmaceutical and mledwice companies must also provide their medichistry sales representatives with
training mandated for the healthcare industry aaihing for new products. Such companies also pl@gupport and content for education and
training of audiences that use their products aitheare organizations.

A large portion of the nation’s hospitals utilizssearch and survey tools to gain insight aboueptti experiences, to assess workforce
competency and engagement, to determine the sthfihg/sician relations, and to measure the peropptabout the hospitals in the
communities they serve. Industry-wide intereshigéasing in research due in part, to the CAHPS@§0mer Assessment of Healthcare
Providers and Systems) Hospital Survey launche@M$ in partnership with the Agency for HealthcaesRarch and Quality (AHRQ).
Hospitals must submit data to CMS for certain reggiquality measures—which for inpatients incluttesCAHPS® Hospital Survey—in
order to receive the full market basket increagheda reimbursement payment rates from CMS. Hapihat fail to submit this survey data
will incur a reduction of two percentage pointghe inpatient market basket update amount fordHewviing federal fiscal year. We are
designated as a certified vendor for and offer CA&H#PHospital Survey services.

The healthcare education industry is highly fragteénvaries significantly in delivery methodseg, online products, live events, written
materials, and manikins for simulatit@sed training), and is composed of a wide vanégntities competing for customers. The sheermel

of healthcare information available to satisfy @ownihg education needs, rapid advances in medmatidpments, and the time constraints that
healthcare professionals face make it difficulgtackly and efficiently access the continuing ediscacontent most relevant to an individual’s
practice or profession. Historically, healthcarefpssionals have received continuing educationtiaiding through offline publications, such
as medical journals or by attending conferencessananars. In addition, other healthcare worketsfgrarmaceutical and medical device
manufacturers’ sales and internal regulatory persbuasually fulfill their training from external welors or internal training departments. While
these approaches satisfy the ongoing educatiotraimihg requirements, they are typically costlglamconvenient. In addition, live courses
often limited in the breadth of offerings and dd pmvide a method for tracking training completidime results of these traditional methods,
both from a business and compliance standpointliffieult to track and measure. While hospitalsl drealth systems occasionally survey their
patients, physicians, and employees using theiriotemnal resources, the practice is limited sithesy do not typically possess the valuable
comparative benchmarking data that is availablemfiedependent survey research vendors.

Finally, the hospital industry continues to operateer intense pressure to reduce costs as a oésalluctions in government reimbursement
rates and increased focus on cost containmentstensiwith participation of patients in managecdeqgaiograms. In addition, hospitals, as well
as pharmaceutical and medical device companiesincento experience rising operating costs, coupligd increased pressure to measure and
report on the outcomes of the dollars spent onitrgi Our products and services are designed td these needs by reducing healthcare
organizations’ costs of training while improvin@taing outcomes, enhancing reporting capabiliaes, supporting customers’ business
objectives.

HEALTHSTREAM’'S SOLUTIONS

HealthStream’s products and services are orgamizedwo segments — HealthStream Learning and H8&léam Research — which
collectively help healthcare organizations meeirthegoing training, education, assessment, andptiantce needs. We provide our learning
and research solutions to a wide range of customiénin the healthcare industry.

HealthStream Learninc— Within HealthStream Learning, we bring trainimgsessment, and education content together witmedrative

and management tools through our HLC. We also effeore streamlined version of the HLC, HealthStré&press™, along with
HealthStream Connect, a content delivery platfdrat ts designed for the singular purpose of allgnancess to our extensive content libraries.
These content libraries allow HLC platform custoser subscribe to a wide array of additional cowese. Additionally, through our Hospital
Direct capability in the HLC, medical device comancan offer online training support for their giots and sponsor continuing education
directly to healthcare workers.

Our learning management system supports healtlcknéistrators in configuring training to meet firecise needs of various groups of
employees, modifying training materials, and docntimg training completion. As of December 31, 20275 million healthcare professionals
had contracted subscriptions for our Internet-ba$le@ services, which include 2.57 million subscribalready implemented and 0.18 million
subscribers in the process of implementation. Rgiédr the HLC is subscription based, with feesglasn the number of subscribers,
courseware provided, and other factors. We offéniing, implementation, and account management
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services to facilitate adoption of our platformeBdor training are based on the time and effdrth@personnel involved. Implementation fees
vary based on the size, scope, and complexityeoptbject. Offered via a SaaS model, our Inter@esed platform and our courseware are
hosted in a central data center that allows autkdrsubscribers Internet access to our serviceehifa eliminating the need for onsite local
implementations of installed learning managemeotipcts.

Platform Extension— In addition to the HLC, we offer an array of fitatn extensions, each serving a unique functiorhfepitals and health
systems. A platform extension is a SaaS applicatitimits own value proposition and revenue stream.

» The Authoring Center is a platform extension thawjges healthcare organizations the capabilityreéate Intern-based courses |
moving their existing course material online ofselthoring new material and electively sharingsthenaterials with our other
customers through a courseware exchange. We disoAafthoring Pro, an upgraded product which inelsid licensed image
library, as an additional subscription to this prod Pricing for these products is subscriptiorelasvith fees based on the number
of subscribers and level of penetration of servigikin the customer organizatio

» The HealthStream Competency Center™ (HCC) is oaSS8#ased platform extension for competency managesoéution for
healthcare organizations, provides customers todssess competency and appraise performance.gfemgp assessment is a
requirement of hospitals and healthcare organizatior maintaining accreditation based on requir@m&om The Joint
Commission to evaluate, document, and report pedoce competencies. We believe that the HCC offiersffective means of
determining which competencies are associatedeeithh position and evaluating and documenting coempgtassessments. Dur
2010 and 2011, we released a series of enhancetnehts HCC, including features to enable largeltinfiacility enterprises to
more effectively manage competency and performanitiatives across all of their facilitie

» SimCenter®, our newest platform extension—which siite of applications—was announced in Januati 20/e formed a
collaborative arrangement, named SimVentures, hattrdal Medical in 2010 to offer products and segsiaimed at accelerating
the global adoption of simulatidpased learning by healthcare providers with a fasusnproving clinical competencies and pat
outcomes. The new venture offers healthcare orgtiairs and medical and nursing schools worldwidenge of fully integrated
SaaS applications that accelerate developmentiatribdtion of simulation content; enable enterprigide management of
simulation centers, simulators, and programs; apgart assessment of the effectiveness of simul&téning as part of complete
curricula. SimStore®, one segment of our collabeeatrrangement with Laerdal, began operationkérfitst quarter of 2011 and
our new simulation management platform, SimManagas launched in early 2012. SimView, our new defbng system for
simulatior-based training, was also launched in early 2

» The HealthStream Improvement Center™ is a -based platform extension related to our researering). This extension is ¢
online system for hospital leaders to optimize aocelerate the execution of improvement plansuding those based on results
from our patient, employee, physician, and comnyusiirveys. The Improvement Center, a licensed wolgy, is one of a number
of solutions from HealthStream Research that irelad¢omprehensive line of survey products, natibeathmarks, HCAHPS
Improvement Library, consulting services, and othgyport tools

HealthStream Researc— HealthStream Research complements HealthStreaming’s product and service offerings by providimaspital-
based customers with Patient Insights™, Employsiglts™, Physician Insights™, and Community InsdWhtsurveys, data analyses of
survey results, and other research-based measurémén Our services are designed to provide thgihcanalyses with insightful
recommendations for change; benchmarking capabidiityg our comprehensive databases; and consskimices to identify solutions for our
customers based on their survey results. Clieetsiblle to access and analyze their survey resatisstidrough Insights Online™, our secure
web-based reporting platform. Our survey and resesolutions focus on providing statistically vatidta to assist our customers with their
decision making related to their organization’'sfpenance improvement objectives. In addition tdextiing and reporting data, we provide
analysis and consulting to help customers undedtdtegir survey results and the underlying impactiair business. It is with this insight that
healthcare organizations are able to develop gtarimproved performance that can be deliveredufhoour learning solutions. Pricing for
these services is based on the survey type, dglimethod, size of the survey instrument, sample, siequency of survey cycles, and other
factors.

CUSTOMERS

We provide our learning and research solutionsigtamers across a broad range of entities witt@rhdalthcare industry, including healthcare
organizations (including government entities) ahdrmaceutical and medical device companies. Weelersubstantial portion of our
revenues from a relatively small number of custanalthough no single customer represented morelt@gercent of our revenues during
2011, 2010, or 2009. Examples of customers tha¢ pavchased or contracted for products and serfiicesHealthStream include: HCA, Inc.,
Tenet Healthcare Corporation, Catholic Health &tities, Community Health Systems, Inc., LifepoimtsHitals, Inc., Ardent Health Services,
LLC, and Baxter Healthcare Corporation.
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SALES AND MARKETING

We market our products and services primarily tgfoaur direct sales teams, our consultants, anaaount relationship managers, who are
based at our corporate headquarters in Nashvidlengssee and in our additional office located iaréla Maryland, as well as remote home
office sales locations. As of December 31, 201t HealthStream Learning sales and relationship gemeant personnel consisted of 58
employees—of which 46 carried sales quotas—andHeaithStream Research sales and consultant petstomsisted of 27 employees—of
which 15 carried sales quotas. As of December @3102our HealthStream Learning sales and relatipnrsanagement personnel consisted of
54 employees—of which 45 carried sales quotas—andHealthStream Research sales and consultantrpesisconsisted of 25 employeesf—
which 15 carried sales quotas. Our geographicédlyedsed field sales organization is divided irt@ms focused on selling our learning
products and a separate sales team focused amsalii research products. In addition to salesegsibnals, we also employ strategic account
personnel that manage our largest customer redtips as well as account relationship managergansultants who work to develop and
expand relationships, including contract renewals.

We conduct a variety of marketing programs to prienoaur products and services, including produdlogs, user groups—including our
annual customer Summit, trade shows, online pramatnd demonstrations, telemarketing campaigndigndations, distribution of product-
specific literature, direct mail, and advertising.

Over most of the last eleven years, we have hastarhference in Nashville for our customers knowiha “Summit.” We have utilized this
client conference to reach out to existing and p@ecustomers and business partners, provideitigiand educational services, and
demonstrate our new and existing product offerikige.have marketing teams that are responsiblééset initiatives and for working with and
supporting our product management and sales te®iniecember 31, 2011, our marketing personnel stediof 17 employees.

OPERATIONS

We believe our ability to establish and maintaingdgerm customer relationships, adoption of oudpods and services, recurring sales, and
development and maintenance of new and existindyats are dependent on the strength of our opestoustomer service, product
development and maintenance, training, and othgpatiteams. As of December 31, 2011, these peetaonsisted of approximately 116
employees for our Learning segment and approxim&&l employees for our Research segment, of wtb€hemployees worked in our
interviewing center. Our Learning operations teamsists of personnel associated with customer stigpgplementation services, product
development and maintenance, training, and projeetagement. Our Research operations team consgssonnel associated with phone
interviewing, distributing and processing papased survey instruments, data analysis and ragasfisurvey results, and project managen

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT

Our services are designed to be reliable, secotesealable. Our software is a combination of gedgary and commercially available software
and operating systems. Our software supports tgpatid management of content, publication of our gitds, execution of courseware,
registration and tracking of users, collection, ping, and analysis of survey data, and reportingformation for both internal and external
use. We designed the platforms that provide owises to allow each component to be independenties by adding commercially available
hardware and a combination of commercially avadlabid proprietary software components.

Our software applications, servers, and netwonkastfucture that deliver the majority of our seeg@re hosted by third-party data center
providers. Our primary data center is located tigrafour rated hosting facility in Chicago, Illiigy and our disaster recovery data center is
hosted by a separate provider located in Frankimnessee. Both of our providers maintain our eqgaigt in secure, limited access
environments, supported by redundant power, enrisorial conditioning, and network connectivity. @uoviders’ hosting centers are
connected to the Internet through multiple, redmhdaighspeed fiber optic circuits. The transactional systsupporting the data collection
our survey products are located in secure, limgeress environments located at our Nashville, Tesgeeand Laurel, Maryland offices and
feed our core business intelligence platforms sttpmpour survey products located at our primargthng facility in Chicago. Company
personnel monitor all servers, networks, and systema continuous basis. Together with our progidee employ several levels of enterprise
firewall systems and data abstraction to protectdaabases, customer information, and coursewasey from unauthorized access. All of
our production data located in our Chicago datderdéa backed up in real time to our disaster recpdata center. Monthly snap-shots of our
data are stored off-site with a third-party dataage provider.

COMPETITION

In addition to the competing healthcare educatielivdry methods in the industry, we also have dioeenpetitors. In the learning business, a
number of companies offer competitive learning ngamaent products to the healthcare industry. We ebenywith companies such as SABA,
Taleo, SuccessFactors, Plateau Systems, Corne@tddemand, and SumTotal Systems that provide sieeuices to multiple industries,
including healthcare. We also compete with largelios publishers that have operating units thatroffarning management systems that fi
on healthcare, including Cengage Learning’s Nethieg and Reed Elsevier GroggWIC Strategies. In the survey business, we se@etition
from large nationally recognized survey researghdgisuch as Press Ganey Associates, National Rbs€arporation, Avatar International,
Professional Research Consultants, Inc., Gallugh,odimers. Our survey business also experiencestdioenpetition from vendors who provide
survey research services to other industries imofuenexa and Foresight. Finally, in our simulatlusiness, we compete with CAE/Meti, B-
Line Medical, and EMS.
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We believe our learning solutions, which includéhbproducts and services that facilitate trainiogtfealthcare professionals, a wide
assortment of courseware, a mechanism for meassatigfaction and/or other results, and the ahiditprovide all our services on a single
platform over the Internet, provide us with a cofitpe advantage. In our survey research busingedjelieve our large proprietary databas
survey results, technology infrastructure desigioeglutomate the processing of survey results, Etgsy core survey instruments and action
plan development methodology, and our ability tackiy deliver relevant online courseware targetedddressing survey related findings
provide us with a competitive advantage. In our s@wilation business, our SimCentér  products ensibiialation centers to purchase
courseware online, manage students and resouraépravide a debriefing capability in an integrateanner. Built on the HLC platform and
with our collaborative arrangement with Laerdal idadl a world leader in simulation equipment, wéidhe we have a competitive advantage
in this area. We believe that the principal contpetifactors affecting the marketing of our leamand research solutions to the healthcare
industry include:

» features of the HLC product, including reportingamagement functionality, ability to manage a varadtevents or modalitie:
courseware assignment, curriculum management,lslitgiaand the ability to track utilization andselts;

» scope and variety of Internet-based learning covwase available, including mandated content for OSHi#e Joint Commission,
patient safety, and HIPAA requirements, competdrased content, courseware scenarios that drivdations, as well as the abili
of our customers to create and host their own-enabled coursewar

» our singular focus on the healthcare industry amddeep healthcare experti:

» scope and quality of professional services offereduding survey execution, implementation, benahking, training and th
expertise and technical knowledge of the custo’ employees

e competitive pricing, which supports a return ondstment when compared to other alternative delivezthods
» customer service and suppc

» effectiveness of sales and marketing efforts;

e company reputatior

Collectively, we believe these capabilities provigewith the ability to improve the quality of héredare by assessing and developing the p
who deliver care.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION OF THE INTERNET AND THE HEALT HCARE INDUSTRY
Regulation of the Internet and the Privacy and Seaity of Personal Information

The laws and regulations that govern our businkaage rapidly. For example, the United States gowent and the governments of some
states and foreign countries have attempted tdasgactivities on the Internet. The following ame of the evolving areas of law that are
relevant to our business:

» Privacy and Security LawCurrent and proposed federal, state and foreigrapyi and security regulations and other laws
restricting the collection, use, security and disare of personal information could limit our afyilio collect information or use and
disclose the information in our databases or ddrfvem other sources to generate revenues. It reayobtly to implement security
or other measures designed to comply with any egyslation. For example, the American RecoveryRashvestment Act of 2009
(ARRA) expanded the application of certain HIPAAvacy and security requirements to apply direatlyi$ as a business associate
of our customers

» Encryption LawsMany copyright owner associations have lobbiedf¢ideral government for laws requiring copyrighteatenials
transmitted over the Internet to be digitally emted in order to track rights and prevent unautteatiuse of copyrighted materials.
If these laws are adopted, we may incur substacists to comply with these requirements or chahgevay we do busines

» Content RegulatiorBoth foreign and domestic governments have adamedproposed laws governing the content of material
transmitted over the Internet. These include laslating to obscenity, indecency, libel and defaoratWe could be liable if content
delivered by us violates these regulatic
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» Information Security Accountability RegulaticAs a business associate of our customers, we quéee to report certain breact
of unsecured protected health information to owtamners, which must in turn notify affected indivads, HHS and, in certain
situations involving large breaches, the mediaddition, we are subject to certain state lawstslate to privacy or the reporting
of security breaches that are more restrictive tharrequirements of AARA. For example, Califorhi&s enacted legislation
requiring disclosure of security breaches involviggsonal information and medical information. Waynmcur costs to comply
with these security requirements. Because manlyasfet laws are new and there is little guidanceelm many of these laws, it is
difficult to estimate the cost of our compliancetwihese laws. Further, Congress has considersdHwlt would require companies
to engage independent third parties to audit timepamies’ computer information security. If the Canp is required to make a
public announcement regarding a breach of secariifjone of the Company’s customers is requirethtike a public
announcement in connection with a breach of sechyithe Company, the Compé's business could be negatively impac

* Sales and Use TaThrough December 31, 2011, we collected salespusther taxes on taxable transactions in all stetevhich
we have employees or have a significant level ifssactivity. While HealthStream expects that #pproach is appropriate, other
states or foreign jurisdictions may seek to imp@secollection obligations on companies like ugd gregage in online commerce. If
they do, these obligations could limit the growfrekectronic commerce in general and limit our iptio profit from the sale of our
services over the Interne

Laws and regulations directly applicable to e-comuaglnternet communications, and the privacy aulisty of personal information are
becoming more prevalent. Congress continues camsgdiaws regarding Internet taxation. The dynanature of this regulatory environment
increases the uncertainty regarding the marketphapact of such regulation. The enactment of argitamhal laws or regulations may increase
our cost of conducting business or otherwise hasnbasiness, financial condition and operating ltesu

Regulation of Education, Training and Other Servics for Healthcare Professionals

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (O$HPSHA regulations require employers to provide frajrto employees to minimize the
risk of injury from various potential workplace tzds. Employers in the healthcare industry areireduo provide training with respect to
various topics, including blood borne pathogensosype control, laboratory safety and tuberculasisdtion control. OSHA regulations requ
employers to keep records of their employees’ cetigui of training with respect to these workplaegdrds.

The Joint CommissioiThe Joint Commission mandates that employers iméadthcare industry provide certain workplace tyadad patient
interaction training to employees. Training reqdiby The Joint Commission may include programsnéecition control, patient bill of rights,
radiation safety, and incident reporting. Healtloarganizations are required to provide and doctitnaiming on these topics to receive
accreditation from The Joint Commission. In additidhe Joint Commission imposes continuing edunagguirements on physicians that
relate to each physician’s specific staff appointtae

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability AetIPAA). HIPAA regulations require certain organizationgluding most healthcare
providers and health plans, to adopt safeguardsdety the use and disclosure of health-relateatinétion. HIPAA regulations also require
organizations that maintain or transmit health infation electronically in connection with certaiartsactions to provide reasonable and
appropriate safeguards to protect the privacygiitieand confidentiality of individually identiflale healthcare information. These healthcare
organizations are required to establish, maintath@ovide training with regard to their policiesdgprocedures for protecting the integrity and
confidentiality of individually identifiable healttare information. Healthcare organizations areireduo document training on these topics to
support their compliance. ARRA expanded the apptioeof certain HIPAA privacy and security requirents to apply directly to companies
(known as business associates) that provide sartaceertain healthcare organizations.

The American Nurses Credentialing Center (ANGOCC, a subsidiary of the American Nurses Assogia{iANA), provides individuals and
organizations throughout the nursing professiom Wit resources they need to achieve practicelercel ANCC'’s internationally renowned
credentialing programs certify nurses in speciptctice areas; recognize healthcare organizatarsromoting safe, positive work
environments through the Magnet Recognition Pro@amd the Pathway to Excellence® Program; and diqgoeoviders of continuing
nursing education. In addition, ANCC'’s Institute foredentialing Innovation® offers an array of infational and educational services and
products to support its core credentialing prograNCC certification exams validate nurses’ skikepwledge, and abilities. More than a
qguarter million nurses have been certified by ANSi@e 1990. More than 80,000 advanced practiceesum® currently certified by ANCC.
The ANCC Magnet Recognition Program® recognizesdtheare organizations that provide the very bestirsing care and professionalism in
nursing practice. The program also provides a Velfigr disseminating best practices and strategiesng nursing systems. The ANCC Mag¢
Recognition Program is the gold standard for ngrsixcellence. The Pathway to Excellence® Programogeizes the essential elements of an
optimal nursing practice environment. The desigmais earned by healthcare organizations thatematk environments where nurses can
flourish. The award substantiates the professisati$faction of nurses and identifies best placegadrk.
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Continuing Nursing Education (CNE3tate nurse practice laws are usually the soureaithiority for establishing the state board of mgs
requirements. The state board of nursing estaldisfestate’s CNE requirements for professionasesirCNE credits are provided through
accredited providers that have been approved baAREC Commission on Accreditation and/or the stadard of nursing. CNE requirements
vary widely from state to state. Thirty-two statequire registered nurses to certify that they res@imulated a minimum number of CNE
credits in order to maintain their licenses. In sstates, the CNE requirement only applies tocenkure of advance practice nurses, or
additional CNEs may be required of this categorpufkes. Required CNE ranges from 12 to 50 creditsially, with reporting generally on a
bi-annual basis. Board certifications (e.g., CNO&etification of perioperative nursing) also reguCNE credits, with certain percentages
required in specific categories based on the gatibn type. We are an accredited provider of GiyEhe ANCC.

Continuing Medical Education (CMEgtate licensing boards, professional organizatisrdsemployers require physicians to certify thayth
have accumulated a minimum number of continuingioa@ducation hours to maintain their licenseméally, each state’s medical practice
laws authorize the state’s board of medicine tal#isth and track CME requirements. Forty-eightestaedical licensing boards currently have
CME requirements, as well as Puerto Rico, Guamtlaad).S. Virgin Islands. The number of CME howguired by each state ranges fron
to 50 hours per year. Other sources of CME requérémare state medical societies and practiceapebbards. The failure to obtain the
requisite amount and type of CME could result in-nenewal of the physiciaslicense to practice medicine and/or membershriredical o
practice specialty society. The American Medicatd@ation’s (AMA) Physician Recognition Award céidate (PRA) is widely accepted as
proof of participation in CME. The AMA classifiesmtinuing medical education activities as eithete@ary 1, which includes formal CME
activities, or Category 2, which includes most mfal activities. Sponsors want to designate CMivgiets for AMA PRA Category 1 Credit™
because this has become the benchmark for qualftyrinally organized educational activities. Mogeacies nationwide that require CME
participation specifAMA PRA Category 1 Credit™Only institutions and organizations accreditegrovide CME can designate an activity
for AMA PRA Category 1 Credit™The Accreditation Council for Continuing Medidadlucation (ACCME) is responsible for awarding
accreditation status to state medical societieslicakschools, and other institutions and orgaivnstthat provide CME activities for a natiol
audience of physicians. Only institutions and oigations are accredited. The ACCME and state médarzeties do not accredit or approve
individual activities. State medical societies, @ieg under the aegis of the ACCME, accredit toittns and organizations that provide CME
activities primarily for physicians within the stabr bordering states. We are an accredited proeide ME by the ACCME.

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMSMS has articulated a vision for health care gyadithe right care for every person every
time. To achieve this vision, CMS is committed to cinat is safe, effective, timely, patient-centerefficient, and equitable. Medicare’s
current payment systems reward quantity, rather theality of care, and provide neither incentive sapport to improve quality of care.
Value-based purchasing (VBP), which links paymeaterdirectly to the quality of care provided, isteategy that can help to transform the
current payment system by rewarding providers &ivdring high quality, efficient clinical care. Tdugh a number of public reporting
programs, demonstration projects, pilot programd,\@luntary efforts, CMS has launched VBP initia in hospitals, physician offices,
nursing homes, home health services, and dialgsititfes.

Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers andr8gCAHPS)CMS has partnered with AHRQ to develop a standatigurvey
instrument and data collection methodology for meiag patients’ perspectives on hospital care. ifkent of the survey is to produce
comparable data on the patients’ perspectiveddw alonsumer-based comparisons between hospit@s,iacentives to drive hospitals to
improve their quality of care, and increase thagparency of hospital reporting. Hospitals musnsitidata for certain required quality
measures—which for inpatients includes the CAHPS®pital Survey—in order to receive the full markasket increase to their
reimbursement payment rates from CMS. While hobkpégticipation is voluntary, hospitals that fal submit this survey data will incur a
reduction of two percentage points in the inpatiaatket basket update amount for the following fabfiscal year. We have received certified
vendor designation and will continue to offer CAHIPHospital Survey services. In addition, we aredified vendor approved to offer
CAHPS® Home Health Care Survey used to measurexperiences of people receiving home health cara vledicarecertified home healt
agencies. We also offer CAHPE linician and Group Survey used to measure patieperiences with healthcare providers and stadbictors
offices.

Medicare and Medicaid Electronic Health Records EHncentive Program<The Medicare and Medicaid EHR Incentive Progranik wi
provide incentive payments to eligible professisnaligible hospitals and critical access hospit@kHs) as they adopt, implement, upgrad
demonstrate meaningful use of certified EHR techgwl The Medicare and Medicaid EHR Incentive Progragrovide a financial incentive 1
the “meaningful use” of certified EHR technologyachieve health and efficiency goals. By puttint iaction and meaningfully using an EHR
system, providers will reap benefits beyond finahticentives—such as reduction in errors, avditghif records and data, reminders and
alerts, clinical decision support, and e-prescglfill automation.

Allied Disciplines Various allied health professionals are requirediitain continuing education to maintain their tises. For example,
emergency medical services personnel may be reftgracquire up to 20 continuing education hoursyear, all or a portion of which can be
fulfilled online. These requirements vary by statel depend on the classification of the employee.

Other Continuing EducatioWe are also an accredited provider of continuingcatlon and continuing pharmacy education by th&o8iition
of Surgical Technologists, Inc. (AST) and the Adlitation Council for Pharmacy Education (ACPE) pexgtively.
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Regulation of Educational Program Sponsorship and @port

The Office of Inspector General (OIG) issued Comanptie Program Guidance for Pharmaceutical Manufacstun April 2003 and issued
Compliance Program Guidance for the Durable Medicplipment, Prosthetics, Orthotics, and Supply stiguin July 1999 (collectively, the
Guidelines). These documents include guidelinegedlto continuing educational activities suppoliggharmaceutical and medical device
companies. The Guidelines already have and maynuento affect the type and extent of commerciaglsut we receive for our continuing
education activities. The trade associations ferpharmaceutical and medical device industries IPhRRnd AdvaMed, respectively) have a
promulgated their own codes of ethics. In Janu@f92the PhRMA code of ethics was updated, and Me¢bmade changes to its code of
ethics that became effective in July 2009. Thesaghs placed further restrictions on the interastimetween industry and health care
professionals. The AMA has established its own aafdethics regarding Gifts to Physicians from Inmyso provide standards of conduct for
the medical profession. The Company follows theswnd guidelines provided by ACCME, ANCC, and otioatinuing education accreditil
bodies to ensure that its continuing education fanogning is free from commercial bias and consistétit the Guidelines.

In March 2010, the Patient Protection and AfforéaBhre Act, as amended by the Health Care and Edudeconciliation Act of 2010
(collectively, ACA) became law. ACA requires manctfarers of drugs and devices to annually repotthéoDepartment of Health and Human
Services anything of value, including educatioralgpams, given by such manufacturers to physidigénning March 31, 2013. On
December 14, 2011, CMS released a proposed rullemngmting this provision of ACA. Manufacturers wik required to report the
physician’s name, business address and nationaldgmidentifier as well as other information inding the value, date, form and nature of
what is offered. It is difficult to predict the irapt of this provision of ACA on us due to lack ofdl regulations or interpretive guidance,
gradual and potentially delayed implementatiorheftequirement, and, pending court challenges assilfple amendment or repeal of the law.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and theFederal Trade Commission (FTC)

Current FDA and FTC rules and enforcement actiowsragulatory policies or those that the FDA or fi€C may develop in the future could
have a material adverse effect on our ability wvjate existing or future applications or service®tr end users or obtain the necessary
corporate sponsorship to do so. The FDA and the f€fUlate the form, content and dissemination loéliag, advertising and promotional
materials, including direct-to-consumer prescriptivug and medical device advertising, preparedbfor, pharmaceutical, biotechnology or
medical device companies. The FTC regulates owectiunter drug advertising and, in some cases,qakdiévice advertising. Generally,
regulated companies must limit their advertising promotional materials to discussions of the Fpfsraved claims and, in limited
circumstances, to a limited number of claims nqraped by the FDA. Therefore, any information thedmotes the use of pharmaceutical or
medical device products that is presented withseavices is subject to the full array of the FDAI &TC requirements and enforcement
actions. We believe that banner advertisementsisspehip links and any educational programs ttekt iladependent editorial control that we
may present with our services could be subjeci8 Br FTC regulation. While the FDA and the FTCqaahe principal burden of complian
with advertising and promotional regulations on éldeertiser, if the FDA or FTC finds that any reggetl information presented with our
services violates FDA or FTC regulations, they rtedge regulatory action against us or the advertissponsor of that information. In additi
the FDA may adopt new regulatory policies that magbtly regulate the format and content of promnél information on the Internet.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND OTHER PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

To protect our proprietary rights, we rely gengralh copyright, trademark and trade secret lawsfidentiality agreements and procedures
with employees, consultants and other third partiesnse agreements with consultants, vendorsastbmers; and use reasonable measures
designed to control access to our software, doctatien and other proprietary information. We owrdé&el trademark and service mark
registrations for the marks “HEALTHSTREAM”, “HOSPAL DIRECT", “OR PROTOCOL", “INSIGHT INTO ACTION", “QUALITY
CHECK”, “SIMCENTER” and “SIMSTORE.” We have also talined registration of the “HEALTHSTREAM” mark irettain other countries.
Applications for several trademarks are currenéigging. However, there can be no assurance thatilee successful in obtaining
registration of other trademarks for which we hapelied.

The courseware that we license to our custometsveloped through a combination of license agreésngith publishers and authors,
assignments and work-for-hire arrangements wittd tharties, and development by employees. We requiblishers, authors and other third
parties to represent and warrant that their cordeas not infringe on or misappropriate any thiadty intellectual property rights and that they
have the right to provide their content and haviaioled all third-party consents necessary to d®@sw.publishers, authors and other third
parties also agree to indemnify us against celi@iility we might sustain due to the content thegvide.

If a third party asserts a claim that we have ngfed its patents or other intellectual property,may be required to redesign our products or
enter into royalty or licensing agreements. In &ddj we license technologies from third partiesif@orporation into our services. Royalty ¢
licensing agreements with these third parties maybe available on terms acceptable to us, iflafdditionally, the steps we have taken to
protect our intellectual property and proprietaghts may not be adequate. Third parties may ig&iar misappropriate our intellectual
property. Competitors may also independently dgvétahnologies that are substantially equivalersuperior to the technologies we employ
in our products or services. If we fail to proteatr proprietary rights adequately, our competitargld offer similar services, potentially
significantly harming our competitive position atlecreasing our revenues.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company files reports with the SEC, including@al reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports omk©0-Q and other reports from time to
time. The public may read and copy any materialdilwevith the SEC at the SEC’s Public Referenc@iRat 100 F Street, NE, Washington,
DC 20549. The public may obtain information on tiperation of the Public Reference Room by callmgy$EC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The
Company is an electronic filer and the SEC mairstain Internet site at http://www.sec.gov that cimstéhe reports, proxy and information
statements, and other information filed electroihjc®ur website address is www.healthstream.coeas$ note that our website address is
provided as an inactive textual reference only.iiéke available free of charge through our web#it annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form &d all amendments to those reports as soon asiaday practicable after such material is
electronically filed with or furnished to the SEThe information provided on our website is not prthis report, and is therefore not
incorporated by reference unless such informasasthierwise specifically referenced elsewhere igrport.

OUR EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2011, we employed 408 full-teme 96 part-time persons, including approximat&9 émployees in our interviewing
center. Our success will depend in large part upgrability to attract and retain qualified emplegeWe face competition in this regard from
other companies, but we believe that we maintaodgelations with our employees. We are not sulifgeny collective bargaining
agreements.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following is a brief summary of the businespaience of each of the executive officers of tlen@any. Officers of the Company are
elected by the Board of Directors and serve aptbasure of the Board of Directors. The followiaple sets forth certain information regarc
the executive officers of the Company:

Name Age Position
Robert A. Frist, Jr 44 Chief Executive Officer, President and ChairmathefBoard of Director
Jeffrey S. Doste 47 Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Off

Gerard M. Hayden, J 57 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Arthur E. Newmar 63 Executive Vice Presidel

J. Edward Pearsc 49 Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Offi
Michael Sousi 43 Senior Vice Presidel

Robert A. Frist, Jr., one of our co-founders, hervead as our chief executive officer and chairmitihe board of directors since 1990 and
president since 2001. Mr. Frist is the companyigfobperating decision maker, and has primary resiidity and oversight of HealthStream
Learning. He graduated with a Bachelor of Sciendeuisiness with concentrations in finance, econsmial marketing from Trinity
University.

Jeffrey S. Doster joined the Company in May 2008exsor vice president and chief technology offitgom November 2006 to May 2008, he
served as principal at The Altus Group LLC, a besiconsulting company. From March 2005 to Oct@b86, he served as senior vice
president and chief technology officer at The Shbpome Network, LLC, a television shopping compdig earned undergraduate degrees in
both Economics and Business Administration from SomUniversity, as well as a Master of Business iistration from Loyola College, in
Maryland.

Gerard M. Hayden, Jr. joined the Company as se#iderpresident and chief financial officer in Ma§@. From April 2007 to May 2008, he
served as executive vice president and chief filmhoéficer of MedAvant Healthcare Solutions, a liegare transaction processing company.
From January 2005 to April 2007, he was a consuftarvarious healthcare, technology and otherrmss ventures. He earned a Bachelor of
Arts from the University of Notre Dame and a MasteScience from Northeastern University. Mr. Hayderved on the Company’s Board of
Directors and was a member of the Audit CommitteenfSeptember 2006 to May 2008.

Arthur E. Newman joined the Company in January 2@@@ is currently our Executive Vice Presidenevidusly he served as our chief
financial officer and senior vice president frormdary 2000 to March 2006. He holds a Bachelor ér&e in chemistry from the University
Miami and a Master of Business Administration frRutgers University.

J. Edward Pearson joined the Company in June 2686érgor vice president, responsible for our suav@y research business and was named
president of HealthStream Research™ during 2007Cénef Operating Officer in 2011. He earned a B&mhef Business Administration in
accounting from Middle Tennessee State University.

Michael Sousa joined the company in October 200d,veas promoted to senior vice president in Janpaiy. He previously served as vice
president for the Company, with responsibilitiesdar strategic accounts program within HealthStrézarning. He earned a Bachelor of
Science degree from Boston College and a MastBusiness Administration from Boston University.

9



Table of Contents

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

We believe that the risks and uncertainties desdrifelow and elsewhere in this document are tmeipal material risks facing the Company
as of the date of this report. In the future, weytn@come subject to additional risks that are motemtly known to us. Our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be maligreedversely affected by any of the following ris&nd by any unknown risks. The trading
price of our common stock could decline due to afthe following risks or any unknown risks.

Risks Related to Our Business Model
We may be unable to effectively execute our grostitategy which could have an adverse effect on business and competitive position in
the industry.

Our business strategy includes increasing our nhatkare and presence through sales to new custpauglitional sales to existing customers,
introductions of new products and services, anchtaaiing strong relationships with our existing tomsers. Some of the risks that we may
encounter in executing our growth strategy include:

» expenses, delays and difficulties of identifyingl @eveloping new products or services and integgatuch new products or services into
our existing organizatior

« inability to leverage our operational and finanagstems sufficiently to support our grow

« inability to generate sufficient revenue from nemgguicts to offset investment cos

* inability to effectively identify, manage and exjplexisting and emerging market opportuniti

* inability to maintain our existing customer relatships;

 increased competition from new and existing conqesj

* lengthy sales cycles, or customers delaying puicgakecisions due to economic conditio

» reduced spending within the training, informatiord @ducation departments of hospitals within otgaamarket; an

« failure of the market for training, information aaducation in the healthcare industry to grow smfficient size or at a sufficient ra

If any of these risks are realized, our businesd,aur competitive position in the industry, cosldfer.

We may be unable to effectively identify, completéntegrate the operations of future acquisitiongint ventures, collaborative
arrangements or other growth investments.

As part of our growth strategy, we actively revipessible acquisitions, joint ventures, collabom@rangements or growth investments that
complement or enhance our business. We may ndtlbaaidentify, complete or integrate the openagiof future acquisitions, joint ventures,
collaborative arrangements or other growth investsidn addition, if we finance acquisitions, joirgntures, collaborative arrangements or
other growth initiatives by issuing equity sec@sti our existing shareholders may be diluted whaakid affect the market price of our stock.
As a result, if we fail to properly evaluate aneéexte acquisitions and investments, our businesppcts may be seriously harmed. Some of
the risks that we may encounter in implementingamgquisition, joint venture, collaborative arrangernor growth investment strategies
include:

» expenses, delays or difficulties in identifying antegrating acquired companies or joint venturerafions, collaborative arrangements or
other growth investments into our organizati

* inability to retain personnel associated with asijigins, joint ventures, collaborative arrangememtsther growth investment

 diversion of manageme’s attention from other initiatives and/or -to-day operations to effectively execute our growthtegy; anc

* inability to generate sufficient revenue, profitdecash flow from acquisitions, joint ventures |abbrative arrangements or other growth
investments to offset our investment co

Our ability to accurately forecast revenue for caih products and services may be hindered by cugtostheduling.

As revenues from our subscription business contiauecrease, a larger portion of our revenues bélpredictable; however, quarterly
performance may be more subject to fluctuations. lralthStream Research products and serviceygically contracted by healthcare
organizations for multi-year terms, but the frequgrsample size, and timing of survey cycles cay fram quarter to quarter and year to year.
Also, other project-based products, such as cectaitent development, and professional servicessabject to the customers’ involvement in
the provision of the product or service. The timargl magnitude of these project-based product @nite contracts may vary widely from
guarter to quarter and year to year, and thus rfiagtaur ability to accurately forecast quarteaityd annual financial performance.
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Our ability to accurately forecast revenue may bigeated by lengthy and widely varying sales cycles.

The period from our initial contact with a potehtastomer and their first purchase of our solutigpically ranges from three to nine months,
and in some cases has extended much further. Tige ia the sales cycle can be impacted by mulfgators, including an increasing trend
towards more formal request for proposal (RFP) @gses and more competition within our industrywelt as formal budget timelines which
impact timing of purchases by target customers. Wesducts tend to have a longer and more unprddé&tavenue ramp period. Also, the
contract structure for some Research products givstomers latitude about when to initiate a surweich can affect quarterly or annual
revenue forecasts. As a result of these factordiave only limited ability to forecast the timingdatype of initial sales. This, in turn, makes it
more difficult to forecast quarterly and annuakbfiicial performance.

We may not be able to maintain our competitive piasi against current and potential competitors, esjally those with significantly greater
financial, technical, marketing, or other resource

Several of our competitors and many potential cditgge have longer operating histories and sigaifity greater financial, technical,
marketing, or other resources than we do. We eneoudirect competition from both large and smakaming companies and other companies
focused on training and talent management in tladteare industry. We also face competition frongéa survey and research companies.
Given the profile and growth of the healthcare stdpand the growing need for education, traingigulation, research, and information, it is
likely that additional competitors will emerge. Welieve we maintain a competitive advantage agaimstompetitors by offering a
comprehensive array of products and services; hewewur lack of market diversification resultingrin our concentration on the healthcare
industry may make us susceptible to losing markatesto our competitors who also offer a complelgaening solution to a cross-section of
industries. These companies may be able to respane quickly than we can to new or changing opputies, technologies, standards or
customer requirements. Further, most of our cust@geeements are for terms ranging from one to dodive years, with no obligation to
renew. The short terms of these agreements mayeeoagtomers to more easily shift to one of our petitors.

The failure to maintain and strengthen our relati@hips with strategic partners or significant changé the terms of the agreements we
have with them may have an adverse impact on ouifighto successfully market our products and sesgs.

We have entered into contracts with other compairiekiding content, technology, and retail chanrexidors. Our ability to increase the sales
of our products and services depends in part upaintaining and strengthening relationships witrstheurrent and future strategic partners.
Most of these contracts are on a rextiusive basis. Certain strategic partners magr @ffoducts and services from multiple distinct pamies
including, in some instances, products or serwdaish may compete with our products and servicesddver, under contracts with some of
our strategic partners, we may be bound by prowgstbat restrict our ability to market and sell ptwducts and services to certain potential
customers. The success of these contractual ammargs will depend in part upon the strategic pastr@vn competitive, marketing, and
strategic considerations, including the relativeaadages of using alternative products being d@esland marketed by them or our
competitors.

We cannot guarantee that we will be able to mairdaid strengthen our relationships with strategitrers, that we will be successful in
effectively integrating such partners’ products éexhnology into our own, or that such relationshigll be successful in generating additional
revenue. If any of these strategic partners araagessful in their involvement with our productsl aervices, or seek to amend the financial or
other terms of the contracts we have with themwilleneed to broaden our efforts to increase fooaghe types of services and solutions they
sell and alter our development, integration, andistribution strategies, which may divert our plad efforts and resources from other projt

Lastly, we could be subject to claims and liabjlag a result of the activities, products, or smviof these strategic partners. Even if these
claims do not result in liability to us, investigat and defending these claims could be expensime;consuming and result in suspension of
certain offerings to our clients and/or adverseligitp that could harm our business.

We may not be able to retain proper distributiomghits from our content partners, and this could affeprojected growth in courseware
subscription revenue

Most of our agreements with content providers arérfitial terms of two to three years. The conteattners may choose not to renew their
agreements with us or may terminate the agreeneaniyg if we do not fulfill our contractual obligatis. If a significant number of our content
providers terminate or fail to renew their agreetaavith us on acceptable terms, it could resuét nreduction in the number of courses we are
able to distribute, causing decreased revenuest dasir agreements with our content partners areexclusive, and our competitors offer, or
could offer, training and continuing education @ritthat is similar to or the same as ours. If {ghielrs and authors, including our current
content partners, offer information to users or @ampetitors on more favorable terms than thoseredf to us, or increase our license fees, our
competitive position and our profit margins andgmects could be harmed. In addition, the failurebycontent partners to deliver highality
content and to revise their content in responsesés demand and evolving healthcare advances amdstcould result in customer
dissatisfaction and inhibit our ability to attraotd retain subscribers of our courseware offerings.
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We may not be able to develop new products andisesy or enhancements to our existing products amvices, or be able to achieve
widespread acceptance of new products, servicdeatures, or keep pace with technological developtse

Our growth strategy depends in part on our abititgenerate revenue growth through sales to netemess as well as increasing sales of
additional courseware subscriptions and other prsdand services to existing customers. Our ideatibn of additional features, content,
products and services may not result in timely tigraent of complementary products. In addition,ghecess of certain new products and
services may be dependent on continued growthrilase of Internet-based customers and we arebiet@accurately predict the volume or
speed with which old and new customers will adeighsnew products and services. Because healtheémang continues to change and evc
we may be unable to accurately predict and devedop products, features, content and other prodacsdress the needs of the healthcare
industry. Further, the new products, services arithecements we develop may introduce significafgatie into or otherwise negatively imp
our core software platforms. While all new produats! services are subject to testing and qualityrob all software and software-based
services are subject to errors and malfunctionselfelease new products, services and/or enhamtenvéh bugs, defects or errors or that
cause bugs, defects or errors in existing proditateuld result in lost revenues, reduced abtlityneet contractual obligations and would be
detrimental to our business and reputation. If pesducts, features, or content are not accept@tegrated by new or existing customers, we
may not be able to recover the cost of this devakamt and our financial performance will be harm@dntinued growth of our Internet-based
customer population is dependent on our abilityaotinue to provide relevant products and seniicestimely manner. The success of our
business will depend on our ability to continuevyiding our products and services as well as enhgnair courseware, product and service
offerings that address the needs of healthcarenaagons.

We may be unable to continue to license our thirarfy software, on which a portion of our product drservice offerings rely, or we may
experience errors in this software, which could iease our costs and decrease our revenue.

We use technology components in some of our predbet have been licensed from third parties. leuioenses to these technologies may
be available to us on commercially reasonable teomat all. The loss of or inability to obtain maintain any of these licenses could result in
delays in the introduction of new products and isesyor could force us to discontinue offering s of our learning management or survey
and research solutions until equivalent technoldgwailable, is identified, licensed and integit The operation of our products would be
impaired if errors occur in third party technologgycontent that we incorporate, and we may incditexhal costs to repair or replace the
defective technology or content. It may be diffidior us to correct any errors in third party protfubecause the products are not within our
control. Accordingly, our revenue could decrease @ur costs could increase in the event of anyreiirothis technology. Furthermore, we r
become subject to legal claims related to licerieeldnology based on product liability, infringemehtntellectual property or other legal
theories.

Financial Risks
A significant portion of our revenue is generatetbfn a relatively small number of customel

We derive a substantial portion of our revenuemfeorelatively small number of customers. A terrtiovaof our agreements with any of our
significant customers or a failure of these cust@me renew their contracts on favorable termstaill, could have a material adverse effec
our business.

A significant portion of our business is subject tenewal each year. Therefore, renewals have a gigant impact on our revenue an
operating results.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, approxim@&#ly of our net revenue was derived from our Ireebased subscription products. Our
Internetbased HLC customers have no obligation to renew sliscriptions for our products or services étfter expiration of the subscripti
agreement, and in fact, some customers have elpotdd renew their subscription. In addition, customers may renew at a lower pricing or
activity level. During the year ended DecemberZ111, we renewed 106% of the annual HLC contralctevap for renewal and 99% of the
subscribers which were up for renewal. Our custshrenewal rates may decline or fluctuate as alre§a number of factors, including but
not limited to their dissatisfaction with our sexj pricing or competitive product offerings. If @ee unable to renew a substantial portion of
the contracts that are up for renewal or maintainpicing, our revenue could be adversely affectddch would have a material adverse
affect on our results of operations and financ@difion. HealthStream Research product and secadngacts typically range from one to three
years in length, and customers are not obligatedrtew their contract with us after their contrxpires. If our customers do not renew tl
arrangements for our services, or if their actilétyels decline, our revenue may decline and osimass will suffer.
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We may be unable to accurately predict the timinfgevenue recognition from sales activity as itaften dependent on achieving certain
events or performance milestones, and this inalyiliould impact our operating results.

Our ability to recognize revenue is dependent wgeveral factors including the transfer of custospgeific information such as unique
subscriber IDs, which are required for us to impetcustomers on our Internet-based learning phatféccordingly, if customers do not
provide us with the specified information in a tisnexanner, our ability to recognize revenue willdedayed, which could adversely impact our
operating results. In addition, completion and ptarce by our customers of developed content antseware must be achieved, survey
responses must be received and tabulated, arzhtiti of courseware is required in connection sithscription Internet-based learning
products for us to recognize revenue.

Because we recognize revenue from subscriptionsdor products and services over the term of the stiiption period, downturns o
upturns in sales may not be immediately reflectacour operating results.

We recognize approximately 67% of our revenue foustomers monthly over the terms of their subsiopagreements, which have initial
contract terms ranging from one to four or fivenge@\s a result, much of the revenue we reporachequarter is related to subscription
agreements entered into during previous quartemsé&juently, a decline in new or renewed subsoriggreements in any one quarter will
necessarily be fully reflected in the revenue it tjuarter and will negatively affect our revenaéuture quarters. In addition, we may be
unable to adjust our cost structure to reflect tbduced revenue. Accordingly, the effect of siigaifit downturns in sales and market
acceptance of our products and services may nfutlligereflected in our results of operations uffititure periods. Additionally, our subscription
model also makes it difficult for us to rapidly rease our revenue through additional sales in angg, as revenue from new customers must
be recognized over the applicable subscription t&imally, the majority of costs associated with sales cycles are incurred up front before
revenue recognition commences, and therefore pedbsdtrong sales performance may increase ous aogihe near term negatively affecting
our financial performance.

We may not be able to meet our strategic busindgedives unless we obtain additional financing, ish may not be available to us on
favorable terms, or at all

We expect our current cash and investment resemeslyving credit facility, and cash flows from opéons to be sufficient to meet our cash
requirements through at least 2012. However, we megyl to raise additional funds in order to:

» develop new, or enhance existing, services or ptsg

* respond to competitive pressur

» finance working capital requiremen

* acquire complementary businesses, technology, sbateroducts; o
» otherwise effectively execute our growth strate

At December 31, 2011, we had approximately $891bamiin cash, cash equivalents, and marketablar#ées. We also have up to

$20.0 million of availability under a revolving dhiéfacility, subject to certain covenants, whiotpges in July 2012. We expect to incur
between $8.0 and $9.0 million of capital expendigisoftware development and content purchasesgl2@il2. We continue to actively revi
possible business acquisitions that would complémeanhance our products and services. We mafian@ adequate cash and investments or
availability under our revolving credit facility monsummate one or more of these acquisitionsc@pial markets have been experiencing
extreme volatility and disruption, and we cannauas you that if we need additional financing thatill be available on terms favorable to us,
or at all. If adequate funds are not availablererreot available on acceptable terms, our abititfuhd expansion, take advantage of available
opportunities, develop or enhance services or mtsdur otherwise respond to competitive pressu@sgdwbe significantly limited. If we raise
additional funds by issuing equity or convertiblbtisecurities, the percentage ownership of owtiegi shareholders may be reduced.

We have significant goodwill and identifiable intgiible assets recorded on our balance sheet that lp@gubject to impairment losses that
would reduce our reported assets and earnings.

As of December 31, 2011, our balance sheet inclgdedwill of $21.1 million and identifiable intarige assets of $2.0 million. There are
inherent uncertainties in the estimates, judgmantsassumptions used in assessing recoverabilggadwill and intangible assets. Economic,
legal, regulatory, competitive, reputational, cactual, and other factors could result in futurelides in the operating results of our business
units or market value declines that do not supghatcarrying value of goodwill and identifiableangible assets. If the value of our goodwiill
and/or intangible assets is impaired, accountithgsrcequire us to reduce their carrying value apobrt an impairment charge, which would
reduce our reported assets and earnings for thedgerwhich an impairment is recognized.
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The current uncertain economic environment may haaeegative impact on our customers and us whichuicbhave a significant impact o
our revenue, operating results and financial conidit.

It is difficult to predict the full magnitude andightion of the current uncertain economic environtaad its related impact on our customers,
suppliers and our company. For example, our customay experience fluctuations or declines in thasiness and as a consequence, some
customers may choose to invest less in informagohnology assets for their business which, in,tconld have an impact on us. The potential
negative effects on us include, but are not limttedeductions in our renewal and revenue growatés, shorter contract terms, pricing
pressures, and delays in payments from customaténitrease our accounts receivable resultingdetarioration of our cash flow and working
capital position. We continue to monitor generalremmic conditions, however, and depending on therity and/or duration of any economic
downturn, these circumstances could have a matedigdrse effect on our revenue, results from ojpersand financial condition.

We may not be able to demonstrate compliance withb&nes-Oxley Section 404 in a timely manner, ahe torrection of any deficiencies
identified during upcoming annual audits may be dtsand could harm our business.

Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 requires our manageimeaport on, and requires our independent pulckoanting firm to attest to, the
effectiveness of our internal controls over finahceporting. The rules governing the standardsetanet are complex and will require
significant process review, documentation andrigstas well as possible remediation efforts for @eytified deficiencies. This process of
review, documentation, testing and remediation reflult in increased expenses and require signif@aention from management and other
internal and external resources. Any material weagkas identified during this process may precludeam asserting the effectiveness of our
internal controls. This may negatively affect otack price if we cannot effectively remediate thsues identified in a timely manner.

Changes in generally accepted accounting princip(€AAP) and other accounting regulations and integdations could require us to delay
recognition of revenue and/or accelerate the recitgm of expenses, resulting in lower earnings.

While we believe we correctly account for and reting revenue and expenses, any changes in GAABer accounting regulations and
interpretations concerning revenue and expens@niian could decrease our revenue or increasexpgenses. Changes to regulations
concerning revenue recognition could require uatEr our current revenue accounting practicescande us to either defer revenue into a
future period, or to recognize lower revenue iruaent period. Likewise, changes to regulationsceoning expense recognition could require
us to alter our current expense accounting prasctoel cause us to defer recognition of expenseaifuiture period, or to recognize increased
expenses in a current period. Changes to eithentevrecognition or expense recognition accourgiagtices could affect our financial
performance.

Risks Related to Sales, Marketing and Competition

Our operating margins could be affected if our onigg refinement to pricing models for our productsd services is not accepted by our
customers and the market.

Over the past few years we have implemented segbasiges, and we continue to make changes, inrmimgpand our product and service
offerings to increase revenue and to meet the nefedisr customers. We cannot predict whether owect pricing and products and services,
or any ongoing refinements we make will be accepiedur existing customer base or by prospectiwtarners. If our customers and potential
customers decide not to accept our current oréupricing or product and service offerings, it @dbbave a material adverse effect on our
business.

Risks Related to Operations

We may be unable to adequately develop our systpnogesses and support in a manner that will enab&to meet the demand for our
services

We have provided our online products and servioesesl 999 and continue to develop our ability tovidle our courseware, learning
management systems, and research systems on sais@iption and transactional basis over the heteiOur future success will depend on
our ability to effectively develop and maintain thé&astructure, including procurement of additibhardware and software, and implement the
services, including customer support, necessamyetet the demand for our products and servicesir@bility from time to time to successfu
develop the necessary systems and implement tlesseny services on a timely basis has resultedricwstomers experiencing some delays,
interruptions and/or errors in their service. Sdelays or interruptions may cause customers torheatissatisfied with our service and move
to competing providers of traditional and onlingittiing and education services. If this happensrexenue and reputation could be adversely
affected, which would have a material adverse effacour financial condition.
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Our business operations could be significantly digpted if we lose members of, or fail to integrateyr management team.

Our future performance is substantially dependarthe continued services of our management teanoandbility to retain and motivate
them. The loss of the services of any of our offica senior managers could harm our businesseasay not be able to find suitable
replacements. We do not have employment agreemathtsiny of our key personnel, other than our ckiefcutive officer, and we do not
maintain any “key person” life insurance policies.

We may not be able to hire and retain a sufficiemimber of qualified employees and, as a result,way not be able to effectively execute
our growth strategy or maintain the quality of owgervices.

Our future success will depend on our ability tweet, train, motivate, and retain other highlyllgki technical, managerial, marketing, custo
support, and survey personnel. Competition foragemersonnel is intense, especially for develgpgeb designers and sales personnel, ar
may be unable to successfully attract sufficiegtialified personnel. We have experienced difficudtyhe past hiring qualified personnel in a
timely manner for these positions. The pool of digal technical personnel, in particular, is lindtan Nashville, Tennessee, where our
headquarters are located. Our interviewing cestirdated in Laurel, Maryland, and we may expesgedifficulty in maintaining and recruiting
qualified individuals to perform these services. Wik also need to maintain or increase the sizewfstaff to support our anticipated growth,
without compromising the quality of our offeringsaustomer service. Our inability to locate, hirgegrate and retain qualified personnel in
sufficient numbers may reduce the quality of ouviees and impair our ability to grow.

We may not be able to upgrade our hardware andwafie technology infrastructure quickly enough tofettively meet demand for our
services

We must continue to obtain reasonably priced, cornialey available hardware and operating softwarevall as continue to enhance our
software to accommodate the increased use of atfoph and increased courseware in our library.if)ees about hardware and software
enhancements are based in part on estimated ftsexfadbe growth in demand for our services. Thisagh in demand for our services is
difficult to forecast and the potential audiencedar services is widespread and dynamic. If weuaigble to increase the data storage and
processing capacity of our systems at least ag$aste growth in demand, our customers may eneodetays or disruptions in their service.
Unscheduled downtime could harm our business asulauld discourage current and potential custofnens using or continuing to use our
services and reduce future revenue.

Our network infrastructure and computer systems asdftware may fail.

An unexpected event including but not limited tielecommunications failure, fire, earthquake, dreotcatastrophic loss at our Internet service
providers’ facilities or at our on-site data failcould cause the loss of critical data and preusrfrom offering our products and services for
an unknown period of time. System downtime coulgatieely affect our reputation and ability to salir products and services and may ex

us to significant thirgearty claims. Our business interruption insuraneg mot adequately compensate us for losses thabowy. In additior
we rely on third parties to securely store our aeth data, house our web server and network sysaémeh€onnect us to the Internet. While our
service providers have planned for certain conticges, the failure by any of these third partieprivide these services satisfactorily and our
inability to find suitable replacements would impaiur ability to access archives and operate ostesys and software.

We may lose users and lose revenue if our securigasures fail.

If the security measures that we use to protedbmey or personal information are ineffective, wayntose users of our services, which could
reduce our revenue, tarnish our reputation, angestbs to significant liability. We rely on sedyreind authentication technology licensed f
third parties. With this technology, we performlrgme credit card authorization and verificati@s, well as the encryption of other selected
secure customer data. We cannot predict whethse thecurity measures could be circumvented by eelanblogical developments. Further,
the audit processes and controls used within aaduation platforms may not be sufficient to ideyptiind prevent errors or deliberate misus
addition, our software, databases and servers maylberable to computer viruses, physical or edit attacks and similar disruptions. We
may need to spend significant resources to preigainst security breaches or to alleviate probleaused by any breaches. We cannot assure
that we can prevent all security breaches.

We may experience errors in our software produdtattadminister and report on hospital performancand these errors could result in
action taken against us that could harm our busirses

Certain survey data collected and reported byud) as the survey data included as part of our C3®HRospital survey is used by the CM¢
determine, in part, the amount of reimbursementrEats to hospitals, and any errors in data cotlacsurvey sampling, or statistical report
could result in reduced reimbursements to our hakpistomers if we are unable to correct thesergrand this could, in turn, result in
litigation against us. Further, this survey datgoréed to CMS is then published by CMS to the gaineublic, and any errors we experience
which result in incorrect scoring on our hospitastomer may result in damage to that hospital'siiegfon, and the hospital may in turn bring
litigation against us. We may be required to indéynagainst such claims, and defending againstsarmh claims could be costly and time
consuming and could negatively affect our business.
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Risks Related to Government Regulation, Content anthtellectual Property
Government regulation may subject us to liability eequire us to change the way we do business.

The laws and regulations that govern our businkaage rapidly. Evolving areas of law that are ratg\to our business include privacy and
security laws, proposed encryption laws, contegtilaion, information security accountability regtibn, and sales and use tax laws and
regulations and attempts to regulate activitiesheninternet. Because of this rapidly evolving andertain regulatory environment, we cannot
predict how these laws and regulations might affectbusiness. These uncertainties make it diffimuensure compliance with the laws and
regulations governing or impacting our businesgsEhaws and regulations could harm us by subgecisnto liability or forcing us to change
how we do business. In addition, certain laws mentleat our customers contractually require ustget the privacy and security of certain
personal and health related information. If we faibide by these required contractual provisions,customers may terminate their contracts
with us. In addition, the ARRA expanded the appia@aof certain of the HIPAA privacy and securiggulations to apply directly to business
associates including us. Violations of HIPAA priyaand security regulations may result in civil amininal penalties. Further, ARRA has
increased these penalties and strengthened otfiecement provisions of HIPAA, which may resultiiitreased enforcement activity.

We may not be able to maintain our certification t@nduct CMS mandated surveys, and this could adeér affect our business.

Our survey product offerings include providing synservices to assist customers in their compliavite CMS regulations. We are currently
designated by CMS as a certified vendor to offeHES® Hospital Surveys and CAHPS® Home Health Careeys, including data
collection and submission services. If we are unablmaintain these certifications, or secure fieations for future CMS mandated surveys,
we would not be able to administer these survelyungents for our customers and our business mdgrsuf

Any reduction or change in the regulation of contiting education and training in the healthcare indtry may adversely affect our busine

Our business model is dependent in part on reqtiaéting and continuing education for healthca&fgssionals and other healthcare workers
resulting from regulations of state and Federahaigs, state licensing boards and professionainizgions. Any change in these regulations
that reduce the requirements for continuing edanaind training for the healthcare industry cowddnin our business. In addition, a portion of
our business with pharmaceutical and medical daviaeufacturers and hospitals is predicated on loilityato maintain accreditation status
with organizations such as the ACCME, ANCC, and ECPhe failure to maintain status as an accreditedider could have a detrimental
effect on our business.

We may be liable to third parties for content thiatavailable from our online library.

We may be liable to third parties for the contenbir online library if the text, graphics, softwaor other content in our library violates
copyright, trademark, or other intellectual propeights, our content partners violate their coctwal obligations to others by providing cont

to our library, or the content does not confornatcepted standards of care in the healthcare grofedNe attempt to minimize these types of
liabilities by requiring representations and watiesrelating to our content partneosinership of the rights to distribute as well as dlccurac

of their content. We also take necessary measoneview this content ourselves. Although our agresets with our content partners in most
instances contain provisions providing for inderiwaifion by the content providers in the event afcicurate content, our content partners may
not have the financial resources to meet this alibg. Alleged liability could harm our businessdgmaging our reputation, requiring us to
incur legal costs in defense, exposing us to awafrdamages and costs, and diverting managemetgistian away from our business.

Protection of certain intellectual property may lfficult and costly.

Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual gmietary rights, a third party could, without autization, copy or otherwise misappropriate our
content, information from our databases, or othesllectual property. Our agreements with employeessultants and others who participate
in development activities could be breached andltr@sour trade secrets becoming known, or outtdrasecrets and other intellectual property
could be independently developed by competitors.nvilg not have adequate remedies for such breaclpestections against such competitor
developments. In addition, the laws of some foreigantries do not protect our proprietary rightshi® same extent as the laws of the United
States, and effective intellectual property pratecmay not be available in those jurisdictions. derently own several applications and
registrations for trademarks and domain namesdruthited States and other countries as well aaioecbmmon law trademarks and service
marks. The current system for registering, allogaind managing domain names has been the subjgigtation and proposed regulatory
reform. Additionally, legislative proposals haveehenade by the federal government that would affwodd protection to owners of databases
of information, such as stock quotes. This protectf databases already exists in the EuropeannJnio

There has been substantial litigation in the compand online industries regarding intellectualpemy assets, particularly patents. Third
parties may claim infringement by us with respeaturrent and future products, trademarks or gbheprietary rights, and we may
counterclaim against such third parties in sucloast Any such claims or counterclaims could besticonsuming, result in costly litigation,
divert management’s attention, cause product reldakys, require us to redesign our productsaurire us to enter into royalty or licensing
agreements, any of which could have a material@éveffect upon our business, financial conditind aperating results. Such royalty and
licensing agreements may not be available on tewunsptable to us, if at all.
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We may be unable to protect our intellectual properand we may be liable for infringing the inteliéual property rights of others.

Our business could be harmed if unauthorized maieinge upon or misappropriate our intellectpperty, proprietary systems, content,
platform, services or other information. Our efford protect our intellectual property through cagiyt, trademarks and other controls may not
be adequate. For instance, we may not be abletoeserademark or service mark registrations forksién the United States or in foreign
countries, or to secure patents for our propriepeogucts and services, and even if we are suadessibtaining patent and/or trademark
registrations, these registrations may be opposéualidated by a third party. Our competitors nevelop similar intellectual property,
duplicate our products and/or services, or desigaral any patents or other intellectual propergits we hold. In the future, litigation may be
necessary to enforce our intellectual propertytsgin to determine the validity and scope of thiepis, intellectual property or other
proprietary rights of third parties, which could ime consuming and costly and have an adversetedfeour business and financial condition.
Intellectual property infringement claims couldrbade against us, especially as the number of aupettors grows. These claims, even if not
meritorious, could be expensive and divert oumditbe from operating our company and result inragderary inability to use the intellectual
property subject to such claim. In addition, if amd/or our affiliates and customers become liabkhird parties for infringing their intellectual
property rights, we could be required to pay a gl damage award and develop comparableimiinging intellectual property, to obtain
license, or to cease providing the content or sessthat contain the infringing intellectual prage¥We may be unable to develop non-
infringing intellectual property or obtain a licenen commercially reasonable terms, if at all.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

Our principal office is located in Nashville, Terssee. Our lease for approximately 58,000 squatefehbis location expires in April 2017. T
lease provides for a two-year renewal option wéttes increasing during the renewal period. Retitisiocation is currently approximately
$58,000 per month through April 2012, $61,000 penth from May 2012 through November 2012, $70,080month from December 2012
through April 2013, $73,000 per month from May 2@a®ugh April 2014, $74,000 per month from May 2Qtirough April 2015, and
$78,000 per month from May 2015 through April 2017.

We are leasing approximately 19,000 square feeffiske space in Laurel, Maryland. The lease expindglarch 2014 and provides for a two-
year renewal option. Rent at this location is appnately $32,000 per month.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Skbwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsioaded, the high and low sales prices per shaoeio€ommon stock as reported on the
NASDAQ Global Market under the ticker symbol HST

Common Stock Price

2011 2010

High Low High Low
First Quarte $ 8.1¢ $ 6.7¢€ $4.27 $3.47
Second Quarte 13.27 7.5t 4.8t 4.0t
Third Quartel 14.37 10.3: 5.32 4.3¢
Fourth Quarte 18.8( 11.4% 8.04 5.11

As of January 26, 2012, there were 104 registeoddehs and 7,021 beneficial holders of our comntonks Because many of such shares are
held by brokers and other institutions on behallwdreholders, we are unable to estimate thertataber of shareholders represented by these
record holders.

Effective as of January 3, 2012, our common stoak listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock, and we do not anticipate pagagh dividends in the foreseeable
future. We intend to retain earnings for use indperation of our business.

See the table labeled “Securities Authorized feudce Under Equity Compensation Plans” to be gweddn the 2012 Proxy Statement,

incorporated by reference in Part Ill, ltem 12liétAnnual Report on Form 10-K.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph below compares the cumulative total $tedder return on our common stock since DecembgP@Qd6, with the cumulative total
return of companies on the Nasdaq Composite Inddxlee Nasdag Computer & Data Processing Indextbreesame period (assuming the
investment of $100 in our common stock, the Nas@lapposite Index and the Nasdaq Computer & DataeéRgieg Index on December 31,

2006 (for our stock and the indices) and reinvestroéall dividends).

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN @
Among HealthStream, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Inde
And The NASDAQ Computer & Data Processing Index

5500
5450
5400
5350
5300
S350
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12/07

12/08 12jos | 1210 | 1211

== HealthStream, Ing,

100,00

H8.61

58.99 | 10000 | 20354 | 467.09

= NASDAL Composite

Processing

—+— NASDAQ Computer & Data

100.00

100.00

110.26

120.54

65,65 9519 | 11210 | 11081

B9.01 105.41 | 121.08 118.17

=—dr— Health5tream, Inc.

—o— NASDAQ Composite

== NASDAQ Computer & Data Processing

(1) $100 invested on 12/31/2006 in stock or ir-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal yeadiag December 31

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

None.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

None.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected statement of income and balance dhtefor the past five years are derived from aulited consolidated financial statements.
You should read the following selected financiaiada conjunction with our consolidated financitdtements and the notes to those statement:
and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fimgr@ondition and Results of Operations” locatezkaihere in this report.

Revenues may be subject to fluctuations as disdUssther in “Management’s Discussion and Analydiginancial Condition and Results of
Operations’located elsewhere in this report. During 2011 a@t02 we recorded a tax provision of approximately3dmillion and $2.9 millior
respectively. During 2009, 2008, and 2007 we retzsghportions of our deferred tax assets throughré¢wersal of the valuation allowance,
resulting in deferred income tax benefits of apprmtely $9.1 million, $0.4 million, and $2.0 millig respectively. As a result of these factors,
the annual results presented below are not comigarBiite operating results for any single year atenecessarily indicative of the results to be

expected in the future.

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:
Revenues, ne
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin)
Product developmel
Sales, marketing, general and administrative exgx
Depreciation and amortizatic
Total operating costs and expen
Income from operation
Other income (expense), r
Income before income tax
Income tax provision (benefi
Net income

Net income per sha~ basic

Net income per sha~ diluted

Weighted average shares of common stock outstar basic
Weighted average shares of common stock outstar diluted

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Cash and cash equivalel

Marketable securitie- short and long terr

Goodwill and intangible asse

Working capital (deficit

Total asset

Deferred revenu

Long-term debt and capital leases, net of current po
Shareholdel equity
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Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except per share data)

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$ 82,066 $ 65,75« $ 57,39¢ $ 51,60( 43,94¢
31,06¢ 24,19 21,34: 19,65¢ 16,16:
7,47: 6,98¢ 6,28t 5,67( 4,30¢
26,77 22,63¢ 19,50¢ 18,97: 17,06(
5,412 4,88( 5,13¢ 4,822 4,50:
70,72¢ 58,69¢ 52,27¢ 49,11¢ 42,03
11,33¢ 7,05¢ 5,122 2,482 1,91¢
10 (21) (15) 72 22€
11,34¢ 7,03¢ 5,107 2,55¢ 2,14:
4,401 2,88¢ (8,86%) (301) (1,945)
$ 694 $ 4,15¢ $ 1397 $ 2,85¢ 4,08’
$ 031 $ 01¢ $ 06t $ 0.1c 0.1¢
$ 02¢ $ 01 $ 064 $ 0.1c 0.1¢
22,44¢ 21,767 21,45¢ 21,707 21,99¢
23,74¢ 22,48¢ 21,83¢ 22,20¢ 22,70

At December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(in thousands)

$ 76,90 $ 17,86¢ $ 12,287 $ 4,10% 3,59¢

12,54¢ 5,702 — — —
23,10¢ 23,99 24,93¢ 25,88t 26,85!
78,63: 19,52+ 10,71« 1,14¢ (90€)
154,23° 82,01: 71,00: 52,79 53,36!
22,75¢ 16,74( 12,23¢ 10,20z 9,49:
— — 4 32C 1,06¢
120,91 56,79: 51,82: 36,76: 35,71«
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the financial conditiand results of operations of HealthStream shoealdeld in conjunction with “Selected
Financial Data” and HealthStream’s Consolidatediiaial Statements and related notes thereto indladewhere in this report. This
discussion contains forward-looking statements ithadlve risks and uncertainties. HealthStreamtsialcresults may differ significantly from
the results discussed and those anticipated i floeward-looking statements as a result of mantofa, including but not limited to those
described under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere mrtport.

OVERVIEW

We provide Internet-based learning and researaftiens for healthcare organizations—all designedstgess and develop the people that
deliver patient care which, in turn, supports tin@iovement of business and clinical outcomes. @aming products are used by healthcare
organizations to meet a broad range of their tngincertification, and development needs, whileresearch products provide our customers
information about patients’ experiences, workfoeogagement, physician relations, and communitygpeians of their services.
HealthStream’s customers include healthcare org#inizs, pharmaceutical and medical device compaaresother participants in the
healthcare industry. Our customer base acrosscwstlearning and research business units includes2600 healthcare organizations
(predominately acute-care facilities) throughout8l states.

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011appreximately $82.1 million compared to $65.8 ruoitlifor the year ended December 31,
2010, an increase of 24.8%. Operating income isedy 60.6% to $11.3 million for 2011 compare&7al million for 2010. Net income w:
approximately $6.9 million for 2011, compared toZbsillion for 2010. Earnings per share (EPS) wa2$ per share (diluted) for 2011
compared to $0.18 per share (diluted) for 2010.eRaes from HealthStream Learning grew by 28.691@r9 million, and revenues from
HealthStream Research grew by 16.5%, or $3.4 milNge had approximately 2,749,000 contracted silieysy;, of which approximately
2,572,000 were fully implemented subscribers onlotarnet-based HLC platform at December 31, 20d4fresenting over 2,600 hospitals in
the United States. During 2011, we renewed appratdéim 583,000 subscribers, representing a 99% ralmate for the subscribers up for
renewal, and a 106% renewal rate based on the boonizact value up for renewal. During Novembet P0we raised approximately $55.1
million of cash through the issuance of approxiryaBe6 million shares of common stock in an undéten public offering. As of

December 31, 2011 our cash and investment balapgsximated $89.5 million, and we maintained &vhilability under our $20.0 million
revolving credit facility.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues from our Internet-based ileguproducts and courseware subscriptions basedpan person subscription basis, and in
some cases on a per license basis. Our fees aé bagshe size of the facilities’ or organizatioesiployee user population and the service
offerings to which they subscribe. Revenue is raczeyl ratably over the service period of the undiegl contract. Revenues associated with
online training are recognized over the term ofghkscription period or over the historical usagequl, if usage typically differs from the
subscription period. All other service revenuesramgnized as the related services are performpobducts are delivered.

Revenues from survey and research services argnmeeal when survey results are delivered to custewia either Internet-based reporting
throughout the survey period or by providing fisatvey results once all services are completegAificant portion of revenues for survey and
reporting services that are provided through theeafdnternetbased reporting methodologies are recognized ukamgroportional performan
method, reflecting recognition throughout the seevperiod which corresponds with the survey cyold eporting access by the customer,
which typically ranges from one to five monthssuirvey results are delivered to the customer afteservices have been completed, then the
corresponding revenues are recognized in full énptlriod such results are provided to the custoAieother revenues are recognized as the
related services are performed or products argeteli to the customer. Revenues for these serg@ebe subject to seasonal factors based on
customers’ requirements that can impact the timfiregjuency, and volume of survey cycles.

Revenues from professional services include comteiitenance, consulting, and implementation sesviEees are based on the time and
efforts involved, and revenue is recognized upanmetion of performance milestones using the priopoal performance method.

We offer training services for clients to facilgahtegration of our Internet-based products. Feesaining are based on the time and efforts of
the personnel involved. Basic online training isgmlly included in the initial contract; howevergremental training is fee based and reve
are generally recognized upon completion of trajrsarvices.

We expect to continue to generate revenues by rilagkeur Internet-based products and our surveyragséarch services through healthcare
organizations. We expect that the portion of ouereies related to services provided via our Intepased learning products will increase in
absolute dollar amounts. Specifically, we will seéelgenerate revenues from healthcare workers lrketiag to their employers or sponsoring
organizations. The fees we charge for coursewardtineg from this marketing is typically paid bytleér the employer or sponsoring
organization.
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Accounting for Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thet assl liability method, whereby deferred tax assed liabilities are determined basec
the temporary differences between the financiaéstant and tax bases of assets and liabilities unedst tax rates that will be in effect for the
year in which the differences are expected to atéeable income. The Company has significant petating loss carryforwards (NOL

which management believes will be available to ceduture tax expense. These NOLs may be subjestriaal limitations under the Internal
Revenue Code Section 382, which could result irettgration of certain portions of the Company’s INefore they are fully utilized.
Management periodically assesses the realizabifitis deferred tax assets, and to the extentwiedbelieve a recovery is not likely, we
establish a valuation allowance to reduce the dedeiax asset to the amount we estimate will bewerable. The Company maintains a
valuation allowance of approximately $1.1 millicr the portion of its deferred tax assets whichratated to the portion of our NOLs
associated with deductions for stock option exegcis

Software Development Costs

Software development includes our costs to devatapmaintain our products and applications, inelgdiur Internet-based learning products
and our survey reporting applications. Once plagisrcompleted and development begins, we capitalizernal costs and payments to third
parties associated with the development effortsrevtiee life expectancy is greater than one yeartlmanticipated cash flows are expected to
exceed the cost of the related asset. During 26812810, we capitalized approximately $6.1 millaod $2.0 million, respectively, for
software development. Such amounts are includéteimccompanying consolidated balance sheets timeleaption “capitalized software
development.” A significant portion of these caliiad costs were associated with our investmehtierdal Medicak AVS product, continue
development of our performance management and dempeassessment product, as well as additionalrie=afor our Internet-based HLC
platform and SimCenté™ . We amortize capitalizefthsre development costs over their expectedgich is generally one to five years.
Capitalized software development costs are subjegtperiodic impairment review in accordance witin impairment review policy.

In connection with software development, our sigaifit estimates involve the assessment of the dewednt period for new products, as well
as the expected useful life of underlying softwar@roduct created. Once capitalized, software ldgweent costs are subject to the policies
estimates described below regarding goodwill, igtiales and other long-lived assets.

Goodwill, Intangibles and Other Long-lived Assets

We measure goodwill for impairment at the reportimit level using both income and market based nsadedetermine the fair value of the
reporting units. Our models contain significantuasptions and accounting estimates about discotes réuture cash flows and terminal values
that could materially affect our operating resoitginancial position if they were to change sigeahtly in the future and could result in an
impairment. We perform our goodwill impairment tedtenever events or changes in facts or circumstimtlicate that impairment may exist
and also during the fourth quarter each year. tritda assets and other long-lived assets are alsewed for events or changes in facts and
circumstances, both internally and externally, Whitay indicate an impairment is present. We meamyeémpairment using observable
market values or discounted future cash flows ftbenrelated long-lived assets. The cash flow eséimand discount rates incorporate
management’s best estimates, using appropriatewsidmary assumptions and projections at the dateaduation.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate the allowance for doubtful accountegibioth a specific and non-specific identificatioethod. Management’s evaluation
includes reviewing past due accounts on a casexby lsasis, and determining whether an accountgheuleserved, based on the facts and
circumstances surrounding each potentially unctliercaccount. An allowance is also maintaineddocounts not specifically identified that
may become uncollectible in the future. Uncolldetibccounts are written-off in the period managerbetieves it has exhausted every
opportunity to collect payment from the customeadRlebt expense is recorded when events or ciramces indicate an additional allowance
is necessary based on our specific and spreific identification approach. Our allowance doubtful accounts totaled approximately $149,
as of December 31, 2011.

Accrual for Service Credits

Due to the complexity of our hosted applicatioresjability in customer utilization patterns, chasge technology, and potential software
defects, our hosted learning management applicationld experience periodic downtime. In additiwe,have specific contractual obligations
that can result in penalties to us associated syithem performance and other commitments. We maiataaccrual which is intended to
provide for concessions due to customers experigrinconveniences or operation disruption resulfiogh downtime or performance of our
applications, or our failure to meet certain coctiral obligations to customers. Our accrual fovisercredits totaled approximately $72,000 as
of December 31, 2011.

Stock Based Compensation

We recognize compensation expense using a faievzdised method for costs related to share basedepay including stock options.
Measurement of such compensation expense reqigraficant estimation and assumptions; howeverpeieve that the Black Scholes option
pricing model we use for calculating the fair vabfeour stock based compensation plans provideasonable measurement methodology
using a framework that is widely adopted.

As of December 31, 2011, we had a stock incentige which qualified as a stock based compensatam Puring the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, we recordedzrippately $788,000, $664,000, and $661,000 of stiaded compensation exper



respectively. We have historically granted stockans to our management group on an annual basighen new members of

21



Table of Contents

the management group begin their employment. We hatorically granted stock options to memberswfboard of directors in conjunction
with our annual shareholders meeting, or as newlmeesrare added on a pro rata basis based on tbel#psed since our annual shareholders’
meeting. We expect to continue providing equitydobawards to our management group and our boatilemftors for the foreseeable future.

As of December 31, 2011, total future compensatmst related to non-vested awards not yet recodnizes approximately $1.7 million net of
estimated forfeitures, with a weighted average egpeecognition period of 2.4 years. Future comai@ms expense recognition for new equity
based award grants will vary depending on the tingind size of new awards granted, changes in thketnarice or volatility of our common
stock, changes in risk-free interest rates, octifial forfeitures vary significantly from our estites.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues and Expense Components
The following descriptions of the components ofenrewes and expenses apply to the comparison ofgedidperations.

Revenues, neRevenues for our HealthStream Learning businesaaeigprimarily consist of the following productsdaservices: provision of
services through our Internbased HLC, authoring tools, a variety of coursevgatescriptions, implementation and consulting s conter
development, online sales training courses (RepDM¢, HospitalDirect®, SimVentures, and a varietyther educational activities to serve
professionals that work within healthcare organizret. Revenues for our HealthStream Research sssg@gment consist of quality and
satisfaction surveys, data analyses of surveytesand other researdfased measurement tools focused on patients, eagdpphysicians, a
other members of the community.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaiitin).Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin) consists primarily of
salaries and employee benefits, stock based compi@msemployee travel and lodging, materials, outsed phone survey support, contract
labor, hosting costs, and other direct expensexciged with revenues, as well as royalties paid$io content providers based on a
percentage of revenues. Personnel costs withinof@strenues are associated with individuals thaitifate product delivery, provide services,
conduct, process and manage phone and paper-haseglss handle customer support calls or inquinesnage the technology infrastructure
for our hosted applications, manage content angegwservices, coordinate content maintenance svand provide training or
implementation services.

Product DevelopmenProduct development consists primarily of salasied employee benefits, contract labor, stock basatpensation,
content acquisition costs before technologicalifelity is achieved, costs associated with the digwment of content and expenditures
associated with maintaining, developing and opegatiur training, delivery and administration plaths. In addition, product development
expenses are associated with the development ofoftiware feature enhancements and new produatsoieel costs within product
development include our systems, application dgreknt, and quality assurance teams, product masiaet other personnel associated with
content and product development.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing consists primarily of saladesymissions and employee benefits, stock basegeasation,
employee travel and lodging, advertising, tradeash@romotions, and related marketing costs. Wé &ositional customer conference in
Nashville known a“Summit,” a portion of the costs of which are indhd in sales and marketing expenses. Personnslwitkin sales and
marketing include our HealthStream Learning andltH8&ream Research sales teams, strategic accanggament, consultants, and
marketing personnel, as well as our account managegroup.

Other General and Administrative Expend@ther general and administrative expenses consimayly of salaries and employee benefits,
stock based compensation, employee travel andrigdéacility costs, office expenses, fees for pssfenal services, and other operational
expenses. Personnel costs within general and asinaitive expenses include individuals associated mormal corporate functions
(accounting, legal, human resources, administrainternal information systems, and executive manaent) as well as personnel who
maintain our accreditation status with various aigations.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization consist of fixed aslepreciation, amortization of intangibles consédeto have
definite lives, amortization of content developmisgs, and amortization of capitalized softwareeligyment.

Other Income (Expense), N&he primary component of other income is interasbime related to interest earned on cash, cashadenis and
investments in marketable securities. The primammonent of other expense is interest expenseecetatour revolving credit facility.

2011 Compared to 2010

Revenues, neRevenues increased approximately $16.3 millior2408%, to $82.1 million for 2011 from $65.8 millidor 2010. Revenues for
2011 consisted of $58.1 million, or 71% of totalerue, for HealthStream Learning and $24.0 millmm29% of total revenue, for
HealthStream Research. In 2010, revenues consiftethb.2 million, or 69% of total revenue, for Hi8tream Learning and $20.6 million, or
31% of total revenue, for HealthStream Research.

Revenues for HealthStream Learning increased $nli®n, or 28.6%, over 2010. Revenues from ouetnet-based subscription learning
products increased by $12.1 million, or 28.4% dterprior year due to a higher number of subscsibed more courseware consumption by
subscribers. Our HLC subscriber base increasedityduring 2011 to 2,572,000 fullyaplemented subscribers at the end of 2011 compa
2,250,000 fully-implemented subscribers at the @n2010. Additionally, we had a 12% increase intcacted subscribers, with 2,749,000
contracted subscribers at December 31, 2011 comhpau2 450,000 contracted subscribers at Decenhe2®.0. Revenues from SimVentur
our collaborative arrangement with Laerdal Medieadre $824,000 during 2011, while there were nemeres during 2010.
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Revenues for HealthStream Research increased $ighpor 16.5%, over 2010. Revenues from Patlesights™ surveys, our survey
research product that generates recurring revemeesased by $3.4 million, or 23.2%, over the pyiear. Revenues from other surveys, wl
are conducted on annual or bi-annual cycles, ise@anodestly over the prior year.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and agmaiitin).Cost of revenues increased approximately $6.9anillor 28.4%, to $31.1 million
for 2011 from $24.2 million for 2010. Cost of reuss as a percentage of revenues was 37.9% of revému2011 compared to 36.8% of
revenues for 2010. Cost of revenues for Health8tre@arning increased approximately $5.3 millior$1@.8 million and approximated 32.4%
and 30.0% of revenues for HealthStream Learnin@@drl and 2010, respectively. The increase is pifynassociated with increased royalties
paid by us resulting from growth in courseware supsion revenues and from additional personnekgses. Cost of revenues for
HealthStream Research increased approximatelyrfillién to $12.2 million and approximated 51.0% &118% of revenues for HealthStre
Research for 2011 and 2010, respectively. The &serén amount is primarily the result of costs aeisded with the growth in patient survey
volume over the prior year.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses increased approxy#484,000, or 6.9%, to $7.5 million for 2011 fréw.0 million fo
2010. Product development expenses as a percesftageenues were 9.1% and 10.6% of revenues fot 208 2010, respectively.

Product development expenses for HealthStream Lrgpimcreased approximately $423,000 and approxith&0.2% and 12.1% of revenues
for HealthStream Learning for 2011 and 2010, reypelg. The decrease as a percentage of reverthe igsult of the growth in revenues over
the prior year, while the increase in amount is wuadditional personnel expenses associated Watfopn maintenance and new product
development initiatives, including SimVentures. drct development expenses for HealthStream Reseanefased approximately $61,000
and approximated 6.5% and 7.3% of revenues forthigieam Research for 2011 and 2010, respectiVhly decrease as a percentage of
revenue is the result of the growth in revenues thee prior year, while the increase in amountus tb additional personnel costs.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses, including persommséd,dncreased approximately $2.9 million, or 22,70 $16.0 million
for 2011 from $13.1 million for 2010. Approximate$p27,000 of the increase resulted from the Sunwahiich occurred during the second
quarter of 2011, but did not occur during 2010eSand marketing expenses approximated 19.5% aBelol®f revenues for 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Sales and marketing expenses for HealthStream inggincreased $2.6 million and approximated 18.7#b 53.4% of revenues for
HealthStream Learning for 2011 and 2010, respdgtivdis expense increase is primarily due to thenBit, additional personnel and related
expenses, increased marketing spending, and ircteasnmissions associated with better sales peafocencompared to the prior year. Sales
and marketing expenses for HealthStream Researodsised approximately $361,000, and approximatetydand 21.2% of revenues for
HealthStream Research for 2011 and 2010, resplctiMee expense increase in amount for HealthStieasearch resulted from the Summit
and additional personnel and related expenses.

Other General and Administrative Expend@ther general and administrative expenses increggeximately $1.2 million, or 12.3%, to
$10.8 million for 2011 from $9.6 million for 201@ther general and administrative expenses as amage of revenues approximated 13.1%
and 14.6% for 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Other general and administrative expenses for H8&ktam Learning increased $251,000 over the pear, primarily associated with
increased rent expense and recruiting costs forameployees, while other general and administrakmenses for HealthStream Research
decreased by $192,000 from the prior year dueweil@ersonnel costs. The unallocated corporatéopoof other general and administrative
expenses increased $1.1 million over the prior,y@@marily associated with software maintenanceveal fees, personnel expenses,
professional fees, stock based compensation expemsent expense.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization increased approxiinm&g32,000, or 10.9%, to $5.4 million for 2011 4.9
million for 2010. Amortization for HealthStream Lreéng increased $467,000, or 24.6%, and approxidnét&% and 4.2% of revenues for
HealthStream Learning for 2011 and 2010, respdytidis expense increase was primarily associaiédamortization of capitalized
software development, and included amortizatiothefAVS product acquired from Laerdal Medical. Atimation for HealthStream Research
decreased $58,000, or 4.6%, due to certain intengisets reaching the end of their expecteddifd,approximated 5.0% and 6.1% of
revenues for HealthStream Research for 2011 and, 284pectively. The unallocated corporate porith@neased approximately $122,000 and
was primarily associated with increased depreaidiiom the expansion of our Nashville, Tennesséee$pace.

Other Income (Expense), Nédther income, net was approximately $10,000 @drl2compared to a net expense of $21,000 for ZD1®.
improvement over the prior year was associated igher interest income resulting from both higimmested balances and higher yields on
cash and marketable securities.

Income Tax ProvisiorThe Company recorded a provision for income taxegpproximately $4.4 million for 2011 compared @ $million for
2010. The Company’s effective tax rate was 38.862€11 compared to 41.0% for 2010. Actual tax paymevill be substantially less than
our income tax provision until we utilize our fedkand state net operating loss carryforwards pf@pmately $14.5 million and $12.6 millic
respectively, to offset taxable income.
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Net IncomeNet income increased approximately $2.8 million6r2%, to $6.9 million for 2011 from $4.2 millidar 2010. EPS was $0.29
per share (diluted) for 2011, compared to $0.18spare (diluted) for 2010.

Adjusted EBITDA (which we define as net income lefimterest, income taxes, stock-based compensatimhdepreciation and amortization)
improved by 39.2% to approximately $17.5 milliom 8011 compared to $12.6 million for 2010. This neyement is consistent with the
factors mentioned above. See Reconciliation of B&AP Financial Measures in Management’'s Discusaiuh Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations for our reclat@dn of this calculation to measures under USABRA

2010 Compared to 2009

RevenuesRevenues increased approximately $8.4 million,406%, to $65.8 million for 2010 from $57.4 millidor 2009. Revenues for 2010
consisted of $45.2 million, or 69% of total revenioe HealthStream Learning and $20.6 million, &f@of total revenue, for HealthStream
Research. In 2009, revenues consisted of $38.®bmilbr 67% of total revenue, for HealthStream b&ag and $19.2 million, or 33% of total
revenue, for HealthStream Research.

Revenues for HealthStream Learning increased appedely $7.0 million, or 18.4%, over 2009. Revenfresm our Internebased subscriptic
learning products increased by $8.7 million, o2b.over 2009 due to a higher number of subscridmedsmore courseware consumption by
subscribers. Our HLC subscriber base increasedigyduring 2010 to 2,250,000 fulijaplemented subscribers at the end of 2010 compa
1,974,000 fully-implemented subscribers at the @n20009. Additionally, we had an 18% increase intcacted subscribers, with 2,450,000
contracted subscribers at December 31, 2010 compaut2 073,000 contracted subscribers at Decenhe2(9. Revenues associated with
implementation, development, and consulting sesvitecreased $1.2 million from 2009 levels, and virapacted primarily by fewer
engagements. Additionally, revenues from live esgstiudy guides, and other project-based activitidiectively declined $489,000 from the
2009 levels due to a de-emphasis on providing tkesgces.

Revenues for HealthStream Research increased $llidhnor 7.0%, over 2009. Revenues from recuriagient surveys increased by $1.6
million, or 12.7%, over 2009, primarily due to sagrowth with new customers. Revenues from sureeyslucted on annual or bi-annual
cycles—namely employee, physician, and communityeyiss—decreased by $299,000, primarily due to fgwejects, as well as changes in
the timing and size of the projects.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and agmaiitin).Cost of revenues increased approximately $2.9anillor 13.3%, to $24.2 million
for 2010 from $21.3 million for 2009. Cost of reuss as a percentage of revenues was 36.8% of revémmu2010 compared to 37.2% of
revenues for 2009. Cost of revenues for Health8treaarning increased approximately $1.6 millior$i8.5 million and approximated 30.0%
and 31.3% of revenues for HealthStream Learnin@®d:0 and 2009, respectively. The overall expensease was primarily associated with
increased royalties paid by us resulting from gloimtcourseware subscription revenues, but wasafigroffset by expense decreases
associated with the decline in implementation, tgwaent, and consulting service revenues. The meds a percentage of revenue was
attributable to the growth in subscription basecreies over 2009. Cost of revenues for HealthStiRasearch increased approximately $1.3
million to $10.7 million and approximated 51.8% at818% of revenues for HealthStream Research fb® 20id 2009, respectively. The
increase in cost of revenues for HealthStream Relseeas primarily the result of costs associateith Wie growth in patient survey volume
over 2009 levels. Additional costs were also inedrpy our interview center operation during theoseloquarter of 2010 to complete projects
on schedule in light of unprecedented snow storxpgrenced in the Baltimore area.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses increased approxyr#&té#,000, or 11.2%, to $7.0 million for 2010 fr&®.3 million
for 2009. Product development expenses as a pageof revenues were 10.6% and 11.0% of revenu@did and 2009, respectively.

Product development expenses for HealthStream Lrgaimcreased approximately $253,000 and approxitha?.1% and 13.7% of revenues
for HealthStream Learning for 2010 and 2009, ret$pely. The decrease as a percentage of revenuéheassult of the growth in revenues
over the prior year, while the expense increasleesesult of personnel expenses associated wit&itures. Product development expenses
for HealthStream Research increased approximatg $00 and approximated 7.3% and 5.5% of revefunddealthStream Research for
2010 and 2009, respectively. This increase wasgiiyndue to additional personnel associated wéhedoping and supporting our survey
reporting platform, Insights Online.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses, including persomsés,ancreased approximately $2.2 million, or 98,40 $13.1 million
for 2010 from $10.9 million for 2009. Sales and keading expenses approximated 19.9% and 19.0% ehieas for 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Sales and marketing expenses for HealthStream ingaincreased $992,000 and approximated 18.4% ark%d of revenues for HealthStream
Learning for 2010 and 2009, respectively. The egpdncrease was primarily associated with increasetmissions due to better sales
performance compared to the prior year. Sales arléteting expenses for HealthStream Research irenlegsproximately $1.0 million and
approximated 21.2% and 17.3% of revenues for H8aklam Research for 2010 and 2009, respectively ekpense increase for HealthStre
Research resulted from additional sales persomietammissions. The additional sales personnel hieeel during the second half of 2009.
These expense increases also impacted the ina@easpercentage of revenues for HealthStream Résear
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Other General and Administrativ®ther general and administrative expenses increggawmximately $1.0 million, or 11.7% to $9.6 nati for
2010 from $8.6 million for 2009. Other general aubininistrative expenses as a percentage of revappesximated 14.6% and 14.9% for
2010 and 2009, respectively.

Other general and administrative expenses for H8akam Learning increased $82,000 compared to. ZDM@r general and administrative
expenses for HealthStream Research decreased $3@0tpared to 2009. The unallocated corporateqodf other general and administra
expenses increased $961,000 over 2009, primastycésted with contract labor, software maintenaeoewal fees, professional fees, rent
expense, and other expenses.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization decreased approximn&259,000, or 5.1%, to $4.9 million for 2010 frc6.1
million for 2009. The decrease resulted from lowepreciation expense associated with certain assathing the end of their useful lives, and
was partially offset by increased amortization apitalized software features over 2009. Amortizafir HealthStream Learning increased
$64,000, or 3.5%, and approximated 4.2% and 4.88%wa&nues for HealthStream Learning for 2010 ar@P2@espectively. This expense
increase was primarily associated with amortizatiboapitalized software development. AmortizationHealthStream Research increased
$270,000, or 27.4%, and approximated 6.1% and Dflfévenues for HealthStream Research for 201808, respectively. This expense
increase resulted from the amortization of cagialisoftware feature enhancements. The unallocarpdrate portion decreased
approximately $593,000 associated with certaintassaching the end of their depreciable lives.

Other Expense, NeDther expense, net increased approximately $6@®821,000 for 2010 from $15,000 for 2009, and wsspeiated with
lower interest income resulting from lower yieldesion cash and cash equivalents.

Income Tax Provision (BenefiThe Company recorded a provision for income tatepproximately $2.9 million for 2010. The Compasy’
effective tax rate for 2010 was approximately 4Dring 2009, the Company recorded a $9.1 milliatome tax benefit offset by $226,000 of
current income tax expense. The income tax beime#®09 resulted from the reversal of a valuatitomeance, which was based on
management’s conclusion that a portion of the Capjsadeferred tax assets would more likely thanbetealized.

Net IncomeNet income was approximately $4.2 million for 20&6mpared to $14.0 million for 2009. EPS was $@é&8share (diluted) for
2010 compared to $0.64 per share (diluted) for 20@2 income for 2010 includes an income tax priovi®f $2.9 million, or $0.13 per diluted
share, while net income for 2009 included an incoaxebenefit of $8.9 million, or $0.41 per dilutshbare.

Adjusted EBITDA was approximately $12.6 million fitre year ended December 31, 2010, compared t® $iilion for the year ended
December 31, 2009. This improvement is consistétht tive factors mentioned above. See Reconciliatfddon-GAAP Financial Measures in
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations for our recadatdn of this calculation to measures
under US GAAP.

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In order to better assess the Company’s finanegllts, management believes that adjusted EBITCeh igppropriate measure for evaluating
the operating performance of the Company at thigestn its life cycle because adjusted EBITDA rmfenet income adjusted for non-cash and
non-operating items. Adjusted EBITDA is also usgdriany investors and securities analysts to askesSompany’s results from current
operations. Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP finanaia¢asure and should not be considered as a meddiumancial performance under US
GAAP. Because adjusted EBITDA is not a measuremetgrmined in accordance with US GAAP, it is susibépto varying calculations.
Accordingly, adjusted EBITDA, as presented, mayb@tomparable to other similarly titled measurfestioer companies.

The Company understands that, although adjuste@EBlis frequently used by investors and securigiealysts in their evaluation of
companies, this measure has limitations as an @egllyool, and you should not consider it in igada, or as a substitute for an analysis of the
Company'’s results as reported under US GAAP. Fample, adjusted EBITDA does not reflect cash exjreras, or future requirements for
capital expenditures or contractual commitmentdpés not reflect non-cash components of emplogegensation; it does not reflect changes
in, or cash requirements for, our working capitegds; and due to the Company’s utilization of fablend state net operating loss
carryforwards in 2010 and 2011, actual cash inctargayments have been significantly less tharnakerovision recorded in accordance
with US GAAP, and income tax payments will continade less than the income tax provision until existing federal and state net opera
loss carryforwards have been fully utilized or haxpired.

Management compensates for the inherent limitatsseciated with using adjusted EBITDA through Idsare of such limitations,
presentation of our financial statements in acamcdavith US GAAP, and reconciliation of adjustedEBA to net income, the most directly
comparable US GAAP measure.
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Income before interest, taxes, stock-based compiensdepreciation and amortization, or adjustedTEBA, for the three years ended
December 31, 2011 is as follows (in thousands):

2011 2010 2009
Net income $ 6,94¢ $ 4,15¢ $13,97:
Interest incomt (52) (19 (23
Interest expens 48 41 41
Income tax provision (benefi 4,40¢ 2,88¢ (8,865)
Stoclk-based compensation expel 78¢ 664 661
Depreciation and amortizatic 5,412 4,88( 5,13¢
Income before interest, income taxes, s-based compensation, depreciai
and amortizatiol $17,54¢ $12,60¢ $10,92¢

FINANCIAL OUTLOOK FOR 2012

The Company provides projections and other forwaoting information in this “Financial Outlook f&012” section within MD&A. This
section contains many forward-looking statemerdstiqularly relating to the Company’s future fingagerformance. These forward-looking
statements are estimates based on informationrttlyrievailable to the Company, are made pursuatitésafe harbor provisions of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and aréjgat to the precautionary statements set forthénintroduction in Part | of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K above. Actual results are jikeldiffer, and in the past have differed, matérikom those forecast by the Company,
depending on the outcome of various factors, inolgidout not limited to, those set forth in Item,IRisk Factors.

The Company anticipates that consolidated revefordahe full year 2012 will grow by 21 percent té6 @ercent when compared to the full year
2011. We anticipate revenue growth in the Learsigment to be in the 28 percent to 32 percent rande¢he Research segment’s revenue to
increase by approximately six percent to nine perce

We expect that operating income will increase betw20 percent and 26 percent for the full yearQdf2versus our 2011 results.

We believe that equivalent shares for purposeslsfitating diluted earnings per share will be betwg7.4 million and 27.6 million as a result
of our follow-on offering in November 2011. We anpiate that our effective book income tax rate Wwélbetween 39 percent and 40

percent. Actual tax payments will be substantils than our income tax provision as we contiougtitize our federal and state net operating
loss carryforwards of approximately $14.5 milliamde$12.6 million, respectively, to offset taxalieame.

We expect that capital expenditures, including hare, software, capitalized software developmedtadditional office space will range
between $8.0 and $9.0 million during the full yea2012.
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SELECTED QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

The following tables set forth selected statemehtacome data for each of the eight quarters éngariod ended December 31, 2011 both in
absolute dollars and as a percentage of total tmgeMhe information for each quarter has beenapegjpon the same basis as the audited
statements included in other parts of this repod; & our opinion, includes all adjustments, cstisg of only normal recurring adjustments,
necessary for a fair presentation of the resultgpefations for these periods. You should readitiidgsmation in conjunction with
HealthStream’s Consolidated Financial Statemerdsalated notes thereto included elsewhere inrésrt. The operating results for any
guarter are not necessarily indicative of the tsdol be expected in the future.

Factors Affecting Quarterly Operating Results

Revenues from our subscription products are reeegniatably over the subscription term. Survey r@search revenues are impacted by
seasonal factors resulting from the volume, timanyj frequency of survey cycles.

Quarter Ended

March 31, September 3¢ December 31
June 30,

2011 2011 2011 2011
(In thousands, except per share data)

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:

Revenues, ne $18,50¢ $21,05! $ 20,61¢ $ 21,89
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin) 7,07C 7,63¢ 7,91 8,44:
Product developmel 1,78¢ 1,911 1,94¢ 1,82¢
Sales and marketir 3,50¢ 4,35¢ 3,81( 4,34:
Other general and administrative exper 2,54z 2,68¢ 2,782 2,751
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,04: 1,35¢ 1,47(¢ 1,544
Total operating costs and expen 15,94¢ 17,94t 17,92« 18,91(
Income from operation 2,557 3,10¢ 2,694 2,981
Other income (expense), r 20 (4) (8) 2
Income before income tax 2,571 3,10z 2,68¢ 2,98:
Income tax provisiol 1,051 1,271 89C 1,191
Net income $ 1,52¢ $ 1,83( $ 1,79 $ 1,792
Net income per sha®:
Basic $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢
Diluted $ 0.07 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07
Weighted average shares of common stock outstan
Basic 21,83% 22,00: 22,16¢ 23,77¢
Diluted 22,96¢ 23,35( 23,49¢ 25,17¢

Quarter Ended

March 31, September 3C December 31
June 30,

2010 2010 2010 2010
(In thousands, except per share date

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:

Revenues, ne $14,83" $16,66( $ 16,61¢ $ 17,64(
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin) 5,46% 5,90¢ 6,274 6,54¢
Product developmel 1,52¢ 1,72 1,75C 1,99(
Sales and marketir 2,961 3,05(C 3,35¢ 3,68t
Other general and administrative exper 2,08¢ 2,39¢ 2,401 2,69¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,39( 1,23¢ 1,148 1,111
Total operating costs and expen 13,42t 14,31 14,92¢ 16,03(
Income from operatior 1,412 2,34 1,69( 1,61(
Other expense, n (8) (4) (5) (2
Income before income tax 1,40¢ 2,34 1,68¢ 1,60¢
Income tax provisiol 597 99t 88¢ 404
Net income $ 807 $ 1,34¢ $ 79€ $ 1,204
Net income per sha®:
Basic $ 0.04 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.04 $ 0.0¢
Diluted $ 0.04 $ 0.0€ $ 0.04 $ 0.0

Weighted average shares of common stock outstan



Basic 21,67¢ 21,79¢ 21,80: 21,79(
Diluted 22,13( 22,43¢ 22,51 22,87¢

(1) — Due to the nature of interim earnings peraltalculations, the sum of quarterly earningsgbare amounts may not equal the reported
earnings per share for the full year.
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Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30 September 3 December 31

2011 2011 2011 2011
(% of Revenues)

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:
Revenue! 100.( 100.( 100.( 100.(
Operating costs and expens

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation

amortization) 38.2 36.2 38.4 38.€

Product developmel 9.7 9.1 94 8.4

Sales and marketir 19.C 20.7 18.5 19.¢

Other general and administrative exper 13.7 12.¢ 13.t 12.€
Depreciation and amortizatic 5.6 6.4 7.1 7.1

Total operating costs and expen 86.2 85.2 86.¢ 86.4

Income from operation 13.¢ 14.¢ 13.1 13.€
Other income (expense), r 0.1 (0.1) (0.1) 0.C
Income before income tax 13.€ 14.7 13.C 13.€
Income tax provisiol 5.7 6.0 4.3 5.4

Net income 8.2 8.7 8.7 8.2

Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30 September 3¢ December 31

2010 2010 2010 2010
(% of Revenues)

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:
Revenue! 100.( 100.( 100.( 100.(
Operating costs and expens

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation

amortization) 36.¢ 35.E 37.¢ 37.1

Product developmel 10.2 10.2 10.t 11.5

Sales and marketir 20.C 18.: 20.z 20.€

Other general and administrative exper 14.1 14.4 14.5 15.2
Depreciation and amortizatic 9.4 7.4 6.9 6.3

Total operating costs and expen 90.€ 85.¢ 89.¢ 90.¢

Income from operatior 9.4 14.1 10.1 9.1
Other expense, n 0.C 0.C 0.0 0.C
Income before income tax 9.4 14.1 10.1 9.1
Income tax provisiol 4.C 6.C 5.3 2.3

Net income 5.4 8.1 4.8 6.8

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operating activities was apipnately $19.8 million during 2011 compared to #1Gillion during 2010. Our primar
sources of cash were generated from receipts fnensdles of our products and services. The nunfliays sales outstanding (DSO) was 60
days for 2011 compared to 57 days for 2010. Theease in DSO resulted from slower payments fronocoers. The Company calculates
DSO by dividing the average accounts receivablarza (excluding unbilled and other receivablesjmsrage daily revenues for the year. The
primary uses of cash to fund our operations inclelsonnel expenses, sales commissions, royalipgatg, payments for contract labor and
other direct expenses associated with deliveryuofpooducts and services, and general corporatenses.

Net cash used in investing activities was approieéfyeb17.1 million during 2011 and $10.4 millionréhg 2010. During 2011, the Compa
purchased $17.3 million of marketable securitipens $6.1 million for capitalized software develagt and purchased $4.1 million of
property and equipment. Approximately $2.0 millimithe property and equipment purchases during 28 associated with the expansion
of our Nashville, Tennessee office space, whilerémeainder is associated with hardware and softéeasepport our business operations.
Approximately $3.5 million of the capitalized sotive development spending related to the acquisiti@n50 percent ownership stake in
Laerdal Medical's AVS product. These uses of cashevpartially offset by maturities and sales of ketable securities of $10.4 million.
During 2010, the Company spent $2.0 million foritalized software development, purchased $2.6 oniltf property and equipment, and
purchased $5.7 million of marketable securities.

Cash provided by financing activities was approxeha$56.4 million during 2011, while $159,000 wesed for financing activities during
2010. The primary sources of cash from financintiyaies for 2011 included proceeds of approximat®b5.1 million from the issuance



3.6 million shares of our common stock in an undéten public offering and $1.2 million from the @xise of employee stock options. The
primary source of cash during 2010 resulted froenekercise of employee stock options. The primasswf cash for 2011 related to payments

under capital lease obligations, and for 2010 eel&b repurchases of common stock and payments argt@missory note and capital lease
obligations.

29



Table of Contents

Revenues increased and operating income improvedtbg prior year, and our balance sheet reflemsgtipe working capital of $78.6 million
at December 31, 2011 compared to $19.5 millionextenber 31, 2010. The increase in working capitedarily resulted from increases in
cash and investment balances, including $55.1onillif cash received from the issuance of our comstock in an underwritten public
offering. At December 31, 2011, the Company’s pryreource of liquidity was $89.5 million of cashdacash equivalents and marketable
securities. The Company also has a $20.0 millienlkéng credit facility loan agreement, all of whievas available at December 31, 2011.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equitslenarketable securities, cash generated fromatipes, and available borrowings under
our revolving credit facility will be sufficient tmeet anticipated cash needs for working capitak product development and capital
expenditures for at least the next 12 months. @heepast seven years, we have utilized our federdistate net operating loss carryforwards to
offset taxable income. We anticipate our remaimiagoperating loss carryforwards could become futized within the next 24 months. Our
actual tax payments may increase significantly dheenet operating loss carryforwards are fullfizgd. As part of our growth strategy, we
review possible acquisitions that complement oodpcts and services. We anticipate that future iatgpns, if any, would be effected through
a combination of stock and cash consideration.i3$igance of our stock as consideration for an a@eqn could have a dilutive effect on
earnings per share and could adversely affecttouak price. Because we have no material debt atanding borrowings under our revolving
credit facility, our balance sheet is unleveragedr revolving credit facility contains financialwenants and availability calculations designed
to set a maximum leverage ratio of outstanding ttektjuity. Therefore, if we were to borrow agaimst revolving credit facility, our debt
capacity would be dependent on the covenant vaude time of borrowing. As of December 31, 204&,believe we were in compliance w
all covenants. The credit markets have been expenig extreme volatility and disruption, and we manassure you that if we need additional
financing that it will be available on terms favblto us, or at all. Failure to generate suffitieash flow from operations or raise additional
capital when required in sufficient amounts andeyms acceptable to us could harm our businesmdial condition and results of operations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obgations

The Company’s off-balance sheet arrangements pitim@mnsist of operating leases, contractual obigyes, and our revolving credit facility,
which is described further in Note 13 to the Compsmuoonsolidated financial statements containedveffeere in this report.

The following table presents a summary of futurécgmated payments due by the Company under camtabobligations with firm minimum
commitments as of December 31, 2011, excluding atscalready recorded in the Consolidated BalaneztSHin thousands):

Payments due by perioc

Less than : More than 5
year 1-3 years 3-5 years years Total
Operating lease $ 1377 $2,28¢ $1.86¢ $ 31z  $5,84¢
Purchase obligatior 27¢ 84E — — 1,12
Total $ 1,65¢ $3,13¢ $1,86¢ $ 312 $6,96¢

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢‘FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update§WR) 2011-05Presentation of
Comprehensive Incomavhich amends ASC Topic 220pmprehensive Incomé&he objective of ASU 2011-05 is to improve the
comparability, consistency and transparency ofrfia reporting and to increase the prominenceenfi reported in other comprehensive
income. The update will require entities to presemhs of net income, items of other comprehengigeme and total comprehensive incom
one continuous statement or two separate consecstiements, and entities will no longer be allbveepresent items of other comprehensive
income in the statement of stockholders’ equityclBssification adjustments between other comprehemscome and net income will be
presented separately on the face of the finantagments. We do not expect the provisions of ABWLI1205 to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

In August 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-B8angibles — Goodwill and Othemhich amends ASC Topic 35hitangibles — Goodwill
and Other. The purpose of ASU 2011-08 is to simplify howeantity tests goodwill for impairment. Entities wilksess qualitative factors to
determine whether it is more likely than not thaeporting unit’s fair value is less than its camgyvalue. In instances where the fair value is
determined to be less than the carrying valuetiestivill perform the two-step quantitative goodwnhpairment test. We do not expect the
provisions of ASU 2011-08 to have a material impacbur consolidated financial statements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MarkRisk

We are exposed to market risk from changes inéstarates. We do not have any foreign currencyangd rate risk or commodity price risk.
As of December 31, 2011, the Company had no oustgrdebt. We may become subject to interest rateket risk associated with any future
borrowings under our revolving credit facility. Thgerest rate under the revolving credit facilgypbased on 30 Day LIBOR plus a margin of
either 175 or 200 basis points determined in acourd with a pricing grid. We are exposed to marik&twith respect to our cash and
investment balances, which approximated $89.5oniléit December 31, 2011. Assuming a hypothetic# @d6crease in interest rates, interest
income from cash and investments would decreasm@mnualized basis by approximately $7,000.

The Company’s investment policy and strategy isi$ed on investing in highly rated securities, it objective of minimizing the potential
risk of principal loss. The Company’s policy limitse amount of credit exposure to any single isanersets limits on the average portfolio
maturity.

The above market risk discussion and the estimeatealints presented are forwdodking statements of market risk assuming the weage o
certain adverse market conditions. Actual resalthé future may differ materially from those piigd as a result of actual developments ii
market.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing 33
Consolidated Balance She: 35
Consolidated Statements of Inco 36
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity 37
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fle 38
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 39

32



Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
HealthStream, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of HealthStream, Inc. as of Decembe2(1l, and 2010, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholdetstye@nd cash flows for each of the three yeatdénperiod ended December 31, 2011.
These financial statements are the responsibifitiedo Company’s management. Our responsibilitp isxXpress an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBigUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit also includes examininga ¢@st basis, evidence supporting the amounts ignbbsures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and gignifestimates made by management, as well asatirgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providessonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of
HealthStream, Inc. at December 31, 2011 and 20idite consolidated results of its operations gnddsh flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@inited States), HealthStream,
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting @sDecember 31, 2011, based on criteria estaldighinternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrtee Treadway Commission and our report datdsflgey 28, 2012
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
February 28, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
HealthStream, Inc.

We have audited HealthStream, Inc.’s internal adrtver financial reporting as of December 31, 20dased on criteria establishedrternal
Control — Integrated Frameworiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria).
HealthStream, Inc.’s management is responsiblenftintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting included in the accompanying Managemenépdt on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an mpiron the Company’s internal control over finahegporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@iq@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corgvar financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiaguthe design and operating effectiveness ofiraiecontrol based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we consideredssary in the circumstances. We believe thadwdit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyesaktepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftaipeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agect to the risk that controls may become inadézjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

In our opinion, HealthStream, Inc. maintained, limaaterial respects, effective internal controkofinancial reporting as of December 31,
2011, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the 2011
consolidated financial statements of HealthStrdam,and our report dated February 28, 2012 expteaa unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
February 28, 2012
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

ASSETS

Current assett

Cash and cash equivalel

Marketable securitie— shor-term

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#éittounts of $149 and $157 at December 31, :

and 2010, respective

Accounts receivabl- unbilled

Deferred tax assets, curre

Prepaid royalties, net of amortizati

Other prepaid expenses and other current a

Total current asse

Property and equipmer

Equipment

Leasehold improvemen

Furniture and fixture

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize

Marketable securitie- long-term

Capitalized software development, net of accumdlataortization of $8,344 and $5,887 at Decembe
2011 and 2010, respective

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaifd8,930 and $8,043 at December 31, 2011 and :
respectively

Deferred tax assets, noncurr:

Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensation and related expel
Deferred revenu

Total current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities, noncurre
Other long term liabilitie:
Commitments and contingenci

Shareholder equity:
Common stock, no par value, 75,000 shares autlthr22£896 and 21,805 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respéc
Accumulated defici
Accumulated other comprehensive i

Total shareholde’ equity
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbstaitements.
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December 31 December 31
2011 2010
$ 76,90/ $ 17,86¢
6,552 5,70z
16,01¢ 11,06¢
1,31¢ 1,31¢
5,08( 3,43
3,40¢ 3,14¢
1,80¢ 1,73¢
111,07¢ 44,27
16,36: 14,34¢
4,17( 2,73¢
2,54k 2,027
23,07 19,11z
(16,990) (15,28¢)
6,087 3,82¢
5,99¢ —
7,94( 4,33:
21,147 21,147
1,957 2,84

— 5,347

31 244

$ 154,23 $ 82,01
$ 2,58t $ 2,37¢
5,492 4,12¢
1,612 1,50¢
22,75¢ 16,74(
32,44¢ 24,74¢
328 —

551 474
154,40¢ 97,221
(33,48)) (40,437
@ 5
120,91" 56,79:
$ 154,23 $ 82,01
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Revenues, ne $82,06¢  $65,75¢  $57,39¢
Operating costs and expens

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin) 31,06¢ 24,191 21,34

Product developmel 7,47 6,98¢ 6,28t

Sales and marketir 16,01% 13,05 10,93(

Other general and administrative exper 10,76( 9,581 8,57¢

Depreciation and amortizatic 5,412 4,88( 5,13¢

Total operating costs and expen 70,72¢ 58,69t 52,27¢

Income from operation 11,33¢ 7,05¢ 5,122
Other income (expense

Interest and other incon 58 20 25

Interest and other expen (48) (42) (40)

Total other income (expense), | 1C (22) (15)

Income before income tax provisi 11,34¢ 7,03¢ 5,107

Income tax provision (benefi 4,404 2,884 (8,86¢)
Net income $ 6,94 $ 4,15/  $13,97.
Net income per shar

Basic $ 031 $ 01¢ $ 0.6f

Diluted $ 02¢ $ 018 $ 0.6¢4
Weighted average shares of common stock outstan

Basic 22,44: 21,767 21,45¢

Diluted 23,74¢ 22,48¢ 21,83¢

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbstaitements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands)

Common Stock Accumulated

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive

Total
Shareholders’

Shares Amount Deficit (Loss) Equity
Balance at December 31, 2008 21,38: $ 95,32 $ (58,55 $ — $ 36,76:
Net income — — 13,97: — 13,97:
Stock based compensati — 661 — — 661
Exercise of stock optior 241 42F — — 42F
Balance at December 31, 2C 21,62 96,401 (44,58¢) — 51,82:
Net income — — 4,15¢ — 4,15¢
Unrealized loss on marketable securi — — — 5) (5
Comprehensive incorr — — — — 4,14¢
Stock based compensati — 664 — — 664
Exercise of stock optior 26C 53€ — — 53¢
Repurchase of common sta (78) (379 — — (379)
Balance at December 31, 2C 21,80¢ 97,22% (40,43) (5) 56,79:
Net income — — 6,94/ — 6,94
Unrealized loss on marketable securi — — — 2 (2
Comprehensive incormr — — — — 6,94
Stock based compensati — 78¢ — — 78¢
Tax benefits from equity awart — 21 — — 21
Exercise of stock optior 503 1,24 — — 1,24
Issuance of common sto 3,58¢ 55,13 — — 55,13
Balance at December 31, 2C 25,89¢ $154,40¢ $ (33,48)) $ (7 $ 120,91!

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 6,94« $ 4,15/  $13,97:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashideal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 5,412 4,88( 5,13¢
Deferred income taxe 4,04¢ 2,67¢ (9,099
Stock based compensation expe 78¢ 664 661
Excess tax benefits from equity awa (22) — —
Provision for doubtful accoun 5C 65 15C
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts and unbilled receivabl (4,997 (1,237%) (1,399
Prepaid royaltie (269) (1,067 (2,089
Other prepaid expenses and other current a (283) (570 (196€)
Other asset 29t 18¢ 13t
Accounts payabl 211 822 165
Accrued liabilities, accrued compensation and eelaxpenses, and other long-term
liabilities 1,55:¢ 1,02¢ 1,08¢
Deferred revenu 6,01¢ 4,507 2,032
Net cash provided by operating activit 19,75t 16,117 11,56¢
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sales of marketable secut 2,221 — —
Proceeds from maturities of marketable secur 8,13t — —
Purchases of marketable securi (17,289 (5,710 —
Payments associated with capitalized software dewednt (6,06%) (2,049 (1,289
Purchases of property and equipm (4,115) (2,627%) (1,787)
Net cash used in investing activiti (17,109 (10,3779 (3,070
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common si 55,13 — —
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti 1,242 53€ 42¢
Excess tax benefits from equity awa 21 — —
Repurchase of common sta — (379 —
Payments on capital lease obligations and notelpa (5) (31€) (744)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 56,38¢ (159) (319
Net increase in cash and cash equival 59,03¢ 5,581 8,18(
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 17,86¢ 12,28 4,107
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $76,90¢ $17,86¢ $12,28:
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paic $ 3 41 $ 4
Income taxes pai $ 387 $ 368 $ 14¢
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of content rights in exchange for fidigervice: $ — $ — $ 66E

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.

38



Table of Contents

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity and Segments

HealthStream, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorpordteti990 as a Tennessee corporation and is headgegin Nashville, Tennessee. We
operate our business in two segments: HealthSttesmming and HealthStream Research. Our Health@ttesarning products consist of
Internet-based services and solutions to meetrigeing training, certification, and developmentaeef the healthcare community. These
solutions provide, deliver and track computer basshatation for our customers in the United Statesugh our software-as-a-service (SaaS)
model. HealthStream Research products offer heaktharganizations a wide range of quality and featiion surveys, analyses of survey
results, and other research-based services.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues are derived from providing services thnoug Internet-based learning products, provisibsuovey and research services,
courseware subscriptions, professional servicegeob maintenance, custom courseware developmenitaer education and training
services.

The Company recognizes revenue when it is reatizedalizable and earned. The Company consideehuavrealized or realizable and earned
when persuasive evidence of an arrangement egistes are fixed or determinable, services andyxtsdare provided to the customer and
collectability is probable or reasonably assured.

Revenue recognized from software and other arraagesis allocated to each element of the arrangebzesed on the relative fair values of

the elements. While elements include software prtedand post contract customer support, the fdirevaf each element is based on objective
evidence specific to the vendor. If fair value cainme determined for each element of the arrangeratmevenue from the arrangement is
deferred until fair value can be determined orlwaitielements of the arrangement are deliveredcaistomer acceptance has occurred. Sales o
the Company’s Internet-based learning productsidelcustomer support, implementation servicestraiing; therefore all revenues are
deferred until the Internet-based learning prodsignplemented, at which time revenues are receghiatably over the subscription service
period. In the event that circumstances occur, wbige rise to uncertainty regarding the colleditipiof contracted amounts, revenue
recognition is suspended until such uncertaintg$®lved. Fees for these services are billed trereét monthly, quarterly, or annual basis.

Revenues derived from the delivery of servicesuphothe Company’s Internet-based learning prodamtiscourseware subscriptions are
recognized ratably over the term of the subscnipsiervice agreement. Other training revenues arerghy recognized upon the completion of
training.

Revenues recognized from the Company’s survey @sehbrch services are determined using both thegropal performance method and the
completed contract method. Revenues are genewiyed over the estimated survey cycle, which tyfyicanges from less than one month to
up to five months. The survey cycle is generallfiated based on the receipt of the first survespamse and runs through provision of related
survey reports to the customer. If survey resuktsnat available to the customer during the sufiggling cycle, revenues are recognized at
time of report delivery. Fees for these serviceshdlted upon initiation of the survey cycle, withogress billings made throughout the survey
cycle.

Revenues from professional services, content maaniee, and custom courseware development serviegs@gnized using a percentage of
completion method based on labor hours, which spoed to the completion of performance milestomesdeliverables. All other revenues
are recognized as the related services are perfbomproducts are delivered. Fees for these serdoe generally billed at project initiation &
upon completion of various milestones.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tlo®ants of the Company and its subsidiaries, alfldWth are wholly-owned. All inter-
company accounts and transactions have been etediimaconsolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetiets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assush it affect the amounts reported in the findrst&@ements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimated anch differences could be material to the codatdid financial statements.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities
The Company considers cash equivalents to be wictest highly liquid investments with initial matties of less than three months.

Marketable securities are classified as availateséle and are stated at fair market value, ighuinrealized gains and losses, net of tax,
reported in other comprehensive income (loss) eratttompanying consolidated balance sheets. Reég&as and losses and declines in
market value judged to be other than temporaryneastments in marketable securities are includedtémest and other income on the
accompanying consolidated statements of income cdbkeof securities sold is based on the spedéatification method. Interest and
dividends on securities classified as availablestde are included in interest and other incomeheraccompanying consolidated statements of
income. Premiums and discounts are amortized teelife of the related available for sale secuaigyan adjustment to yield using the effective
interest method.

Accounts Receivable-Unbilled and Deferred Revenue

Accounts receivable-unbilled represents the foltayil) revenue earned and recognized on contractaiated for using the proportional
performance method for which invoices have not tgemerated or contractual billing dates have nehbeached; and 2) the difference
between billings for contracts containing escalaigcing over the term of the agreement and thegeition of revenue ratably over the
subscription period. Deferred revenue representauats, which have been billed or collected, butysitrecognized in revenue.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company estimates its allowance for doubtfabaats using a specific identification method. Mgeraent determines the allowance for
doubtful accounts on a case-by-case basis, bastgkdacts and circumstances surrounding each fatgruncollectible receivable. An
allowance is also maintained for accounts thahatespecifically identified that may become uncdiilele in the future. Uncollectible
receivables are writteoff in the period management believes it has exieausvery opportunity to collect payment from tistomer. Bad del
expense is recorded when events or circumstandesate an additional allowance is required basetherCompany’s specific identification
approach.

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accountstaacamounts charged to bad debt expense for the gaded December 31, were as follows
(in thousands):

Allowance Balance a Charged to Costs ani Allowance Balance a

Beginning of Period Expenses Write -offs End of Period
2011 $ 157 $ 50 $ 58 $ 14¢
2010 $ 141 $ 65 $ 49 $ 157
2009 $ 107 $ 15C $ 11€ $ 141

Capitalized Software Development

Capitalized software development is stated on #sistof cost, and is presented net of accumulatexttezation. The Company capitalizes ct
incurred during the software development phas@fojects when such costs are material. These amsetsnortized using the straight-line
method, generally ranging between one to five yétire Company capitalized approximately $6.1 milland $2.0 million during 2011 and
2010, respectively. Maintenance and operating @stexpensed as incurred. As of December 31, @0d 2010, there were no capitalized
internal development costs for computer softwarestigped for resale.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated on the basisstf Depreciation and amortization are providedhenstraight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives, except for assetder capital leases and leasehold improvemetiishvare amortized over the shorter of the
estimated useful life or their respective leasmtddepreciation and amortization of property andigepent totaled $1.9 million and $1.7
million for the years ended December 31, 2011 d@idD2respectively.

Years
Furniture and fixture 5-10
Equipment 3-5
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase priee fair value of net tangible assets acquired. Company measures goodwill for impairrr
at the reporting unit level using both income aratket based models to determine the fair valud@féporting units. The Company will
perform its goodwill impairment test whenever egemt changes in facts or circumstances indicateit@airment may exist, or at least
annually during the fourth quarter.

As of December 31, 2011 intangible assets with neimg unamortized balances include contract rigims customer relationships. These
intangible assets are considered to have defisgéulillives and are being amortized on a straigktbasis. The weighted average amortization
period for definite lived intangible assets as ecBmber 31, 2011 is 8.0 years. Intangible assetseairewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in facts or circumstances indicatettigatarrying amount of the assets may not be reablee There were no impairments
identified or recorded for the years ended DecerBhef011, 2010, or 2009.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets to be held for use are reviewe@v¥ents or changes in facts and circumstancéis,imernally and externally, which may
indicate that an impairment of loriged assets held for use are present. The Compeagures any impairment using observable markees
or discounted future cash flows from the relatetgiived assets. The cash flow estimates and diggaies incorporate management’s best
estimates, using appropriate and customary assonsgdind projections at the date of evaluation. ldangent periodically evaluates whether
the carrying value of long-lived assets, includgrgperty and equipment, capitalized software deyalent, other assets and intangible assets
will be recoverable. There were no impairments iified or recorded for the years ended Decembe311, 2010, or 2009.

Other Assets
Other assets are comprised of the long-term podfaontent development fees and other asset$amigaterm nature.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the assdtadnility method, whereby deferred tax assets éatillties are determined based on the
temporary differences between the financial statérard tax bases of assets and liabilities meastrek rates that will be in effect for the
year in which the differences are expected to atéeable income. Management evaluates all availabidence, both positive and negative
determine whether, based on the weight of thatesdd, a valuation allowance is needed. Futurezagadi of the tax benefit of an existing
deductible temporary difference or carryforwardméttely depends on the existence of sufficienttix@come of the appropriate character
within the carryback or carryforward period avaiahnder the tax law. There are four possible sesiof taxable income that may be available
under the tax law to realize a tax benefit for deitile temporary differences and carryforwardsfutiire reversals of existing taxable
temporary differences, 2) future taxable incomduwesice of reversing temporary differences and darwards, 3) taxable income in prior
carryback year(s) if carryback is permitted unthertax law, and 4) tax-planning strategies thatldiafinecessary, be implemented to realize
deductible temporary differences or carryforwardergo their expiration. Management reviews thalieability of its deferred tax assets each
reporting period to identify whether any signifit@hanges in circumstances or assumptions havereccthat could materially affect the
realizability of deferred tax assets. As of Decengie 2011, the Company has established a valuatiowance of $1.1 million for the portion
of its net deferred tax assets that are not mketylthan not expected to be realized.

The Company accounts for income tax uncertaintasgua more-likely-than-not recognition threshosséd on the technical merits of the tax
position taken. Tax positions that meet the mdteli-than-not recognition threshold are measureafiter to determine the tax benefit to be
recognized in the financial statements. The Comgapgnses any penalties or interest associatedaxitbbligations as general and
administrative expenses and interest expense,atbagly.

Accrual for Service Credits

The Company maintains an accrual for service seldt may occur from our Internet-based learniglpcts. The accrual is estimated using
management’s judgment and analysis of potentiklaidoss associated with downtime, system perforceaor other contractual obligations
associated with our hosted applications. At DecerBle2011, and 2010, the accrual for service tsduilance was approximately $72,000
$194,000, respectively, and is included on the mamying consolidated balance sheets under theaodpiccrued liabilities.”
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Other Long Term Liabilities
Other long term liabilities represent the defemewt liability associated with an operating leasedffice space in Nashville, Tennessee.

Advertising

The Company expenses the costs of advertisingcasréd. Advertising expense for the years endecebéer 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 was
approximately $251,000, $130,000, and $137,00pees/ely.

Shipping and Handling Costs
Shipping and handling costs that are associatddaut products and services are included in costwdnues.

Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is computed by divitlregnet income available to common shareholderthfoperiod by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during thegebiluted net income per share is computed biditig the net income for the period by
the weighted average number of common and commoiragnt shares outstanding during the period. Comequivalent shares, composed
of incremental common shares issuable upon theiseeof stock options, are included in dilutedinebme per share to the extent these share:
are dilutive. Common equivalent shares that havengirdilutive effect on diluted net income per ghhave been excluded from the calculation
of diluted weighted average shares outstandinghfoyears ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009.

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Significant Custaners

The Company places its temporary excess cash meess in high quality, short-term money marketrinstents. At times, such investments
may be in excess of the FDIC insurance limits.

The Company sells its products and services t@uarcompanies in the healthcare industry thatcw@téd in the United States. We perform
ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ firiahcondition and generally require no collaterahfi customers. The Company did not have
any single customer representing over 10% of netmees during 2011, 2010, or 2009.

Stock Based Compensation

As of December 31, 2011, the Company maintaineekdiased compensation plan, which is describ&bie 11. The Company accounts for
stock based compensation using the fair-value biastdod for costs related to share-based paymantsding stock options. The Company
uses the Black Scholes option pricing model focaling the fair value of awards issued undestibek based compensation plan. Stock b
compensation cost is measured at the grant degedlmm the fair value of the award that is ultinyaépected to vest, and is recognized as an
expense over the requisite service period. The @ompecognizes tax benefits from stock based cosgtiEem if an excess tax benefit is
realized. Excess tax benefits are recorded ascaedase to common stock when realized.

Financial Instruments

The Company has financial instruments, includinghcand cash equivalents, accounts receivable, atxmeceivable-unbilled, accounts
payable, accrued liabilities, and deferred reveiibe. carrying amounts of these financial instruraeproximate fair value because of the
short term maturity or short term nature of sudtriments. Marketable securities approximate faliue based on quoted market prices, see
Note 5.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)

Newly Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢‘FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update§tWR) 2011-05Presentation of
Comprehensive Incomevhich amends ASC Topic 22CGpmprehensive Incomé& he objective of ASU 2011-05 is to improve the
comparability, consistency and transparency ofrfia reporting and to increase the prominenceéenfis reported in other comprehensive
income. The update will require entities to presemhs of net income, items of other comprehengieeme and total comprehensive incom
one continuous statement or two separate consecstitements, and entities will no longer be altb¥eepresent items of other comprehensive
income in the statement of stockholders’ equityclBssification adjustments between other comprehemscome and net income will be
presented separately on the face of the finantagments. We do not expect the provisions of ABW1205 to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

In August 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-B8angibles — Goodwill and Othemhich amends ASC Topic 35hitangibles — Goodwill
and Other. The purpose of ASU 2011-08 is to simplify howeanity tests goodwill for impairment. Entities wélksess qualitative factors to
determine whether it is more likely than not thaeporting unit’s fair value is less than its camgyvalue. In instances where the fair value is
determined to be less than the carrying valuetiestvill perform the two-step quantitative goodwnhpairment test. We do not expect the
provisions of ASU 2011-08 to have a material impgatbur consolidated financial statements.

2. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 75 milfibares of common stock. The number of common shsseed and outstanding as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010 was approximately 28li@mand 21.8 million, respectively. During 201the Company issued approximately
3.6 million shares of common stock in connectiothvein underwritten public offering, raising appmsgitely $55.1 million of cash. During
2010, the Company purchased approximately 78,08festof common stock at an average price of $4e88are.

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 10 miliibares of preferred stock in one or more serggnh the relative voting powers,
designations, preferences, rights and qualificatitimitations or restrictions, and other termshesBoard of Directors may fix in providing for
the issuance of such series, without any vote tioraof the shareholders. During 2000, all outstagdhares of preferred stock were converted
into common stock in connection with our initialighic offering (IPO). There have been no sharesrefgured stock outstanding since our IPO.

3. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation aéle and diluted earnings per share for the theaesyended December 31, 2011 (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

2011 2010 2009
Numerator:
Net income $ 6,94 $ 4,15¢ $13,97:
Denominator
Weighte(-average shares outstand 22,44 21,76° 21,45¢
Effect of dilutive share 1,30z 721 38C
Weightec-average diluted shar 23,74¢ 22,48t 21,83¢
Basic earnings per she $ 0.31 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.6F
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.2¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.64

Potentially dilutive shares representing approxatyad.2 million, 0.4 million, and 1.5 million sha&®f common stock for 2011, 2010, and
2009, respectively, were excluded from the caloutadf diluted earnings per share because thedceffould have been anti-dilutive.

43



Table of Contents

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

4. MARKETABLE SECURITIES

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the fair value ofketable securities, which were all classified @a&ilable for sale, included the following
thousands):

December 31, 2011

Adjusted Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
Mutual funds $ 2,50/ $ — $ — $ 2,50¢
Corporate debt securiti 2,03¢ — (D) 2,037
U.S. government securitit 8,01 — (6) 8,007
$ 12,55 $ — $ 7) $ 12,54¢

December 31, 2010

Adjusted Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
Corporate debt securities $ 3,201 $ — $ 2 $ 3,19¢
Municipal debt securitie 2,50¢ — 3 2,50t
$ 5,70¢ $ — $ (5) $ 5,70¢

The maturities of the above debt securities at Bée 31, 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

Mature within one yee $ 4,04¢
Mature after one year but before two ye 5,99¢
Total $10,04¢

5. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is defined as the price that would leeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alitgtin the principal or most advantageous ma
in an orderly transaction between market partidipan the measurement date. The fair value hieygydbritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used in measuring fair value. Therghaie levels to the fair value hierarchy basedhenreliability of inputs, as follows:

Level 1— Observable inputs that reflect quoted pricesdjusted) for identical assets or liabilities inimetmarkets.
Level 2— Inputs other than quoted prices included in Laviiat are observable for the asset or liabisitther directly or indirectly.
Level 3— Unobservable inputs in which little or no marllata exists, therefore requiring the Company teebtgvits own assumptions.

The Company evaluates assets and liabilities sutgjdair value measurements on a recurring basietermine the appropriate level at which
to classify them for each reporting period. Thitedmination requires significant judgments to bedleby the Company.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &ecurring Basis
The assets and liabilities that are measured mvddie on a recurring basis as of December 311 201 2010 were as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Available for sale securitie $ 2,50/ $ 10,04« $ —
December 31, 201/

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Available for sale securitie $ — $ 5,70 $ —

At December 31, 2011, the fair value measuremewtans for assets consisted of marketable secuvitigsh are classified as available for
sale. The carrying amounts reported in the conatdiibalance sheets approximate the fair valueeo€ompany’s marketable securities based
on quoted market prices or alternative pricing sesrand models utilizing market observable inplibsbe consistent with the current
presentation, we reclassified $5.7 million of maakde securities previously reported as Level Basas of December 31, 2010 to Level 2. We
determined these assets should be classified a&d Rdecause the investments are in fixed incoroergees. At December 31, 2011 and 2010,
the Company did not have any financial liabilitteat were subject to fair value measurements.
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6. GOODWILL

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annuakiyng a fair value method, consisting of both mecand market based models. The techr
used to determine the fair value of our reportingsuis sensitive to estimates and assumptioncieged with cash flow from operations and
growth, discount rates, and reporting unit termiredues. If these estimates or their related astiongchange in the future, we may be
required to record an impairment charge, which ¢@adversely impact our operating results for thégopen which such a determination is
made. The Company performs its annual impairmealuation of goodwill during the fourth quarter afol year and as changes in facts and
circumstances indicate impairment exists. Durirggahnual impairment evaluation in the fourth quasfe2011 and 2010, the results of our
goodwill impairment analysis indicated the fairwelof our reporting units exceeded their carryiatygs. Therefore no impairment existed at
December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Goodwill for HealthStream Learning totaled approately $3.3 million at December 31, 2011 and 201@, goodwill for HealthStream
Research totaled approximately $17.8 million atémeber 31, 2011 and 2010. There were no changée icarrying amount of goodwill duri
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. Oardahu2002, upon the adoption of FASB guidancegfmydwill and other intangible
assets, the Company recorded a $5.0 million gobdéwlairment charge for HealthStream Learning.

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

All intangible assets are considered to have fingeful lives. Customer related intangibles aradp@imortized over their estimated useful lives
of eight years. Amortization of intangible asseswapproximately $887,000, $947,000, and $947 j@d@he years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively.

Identifiable intangible assets are comprised offthlewing (in thousands):

As of December 31, 201 As of December 31, 201
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Gross
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Customer relate $991f $ (7,95¢) $1,957 $ 991t $ (7,08 $2,82¢
Other 972 (972) — 972 (957) 15
Total $10,88° $ (8,930 $1,951 $10,887 $ (8,049 $2,84¢

The expected annual amortization expense for taesyending December 31, is as follows (in thousands

2012 $ 872
2013 54¢
2014 447
2015 89

Total $1,957

8. COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENT

On June 23, 2010, the Company announced the famafiSimVenture3" | a collaborative arrangemenwbeh HealthStream and Laerdal
Medical A/S (Laerdal Medical). The Company recei@8gpercent of the profits or losses generated tiascollaborative arrangement. The
parties did not form a separate legal entity as gfathe collaborative arrangement; therefore,Goenpany accounts for SimVentures as a
collaborative arrangement in accordance with applie accounting guidance. During the first quanfe2011, the Company acquired a 50
percent ownership interest in Laerdal Medical's Adeed Video System (AVS) product for $3.5 millionciash. AVS is a product that enables
users of advanced patient simulators to easilyucaptideo, audio, data logs, and “patient” respsn$be AVS product is now jointly owned
through SimVentures. During the second quartei0dfl2 SimVentures launched SimStore®, one of thepoomants of SimCenter® that offers
healthcare providers an opportunity to sample andh@ase simulation scenarios to use in their sitialdraining activities. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Company recorded approxiyns®e8 million of revenues and $1.3 million of exses related to the collaborative
arrangement. The Company also recorded approxiynddeB million of capitalized software developmést SimVentures during 2011,
comprised of the $3.5 million paid for the AVS puotland $0.8 million associated with SimStore® &miManager.
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9. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company provides services to healthcare orgtairs and other members within the healthcaresimguThese services are primarily
focused on the delivery of education and trainimgdpcts and services (HealthStream Learning), disasesurvey and research services
(HealthStream Research).

The Company measures segment performance basqrtmating income before income taxes and prior écaffocation of certain corporate
overhead expenses, interest income, interest egpand depreciation. The Unallocated componentbeioludes corporate functions, such as
accounting, human resources, legal, investor mglatiadministrative, and executive personnel, dégtien, a portion of amortization, and
certain other expenses, which are not currentbcated in measuring segment performance. The foilpig the Company’s business segment
information as of and for the years ended Decer8beR011, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands).

Year ended December 31, 201

Learning Research Unallocatec Consolidatec

Revenues, ne $ 58,07¢ $ 23,98t¢ $ — $ 82,06¢
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin) 18,84: 12,22« — 31,06¢
Product developmel 5,907 1,56¢ — 7,47:
Sales and marketir 10,87! 4,73 413 16,017
Other general and administrati 2,11¢ 1,632 7,012 10,76(
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,36¢ 1,194 1,85¢ 5,412
Total income from operatior $ 17,97¢ $ 2,63¢ $ (9,279 $ 11,33¢
*Segment asse $ 27,32 $ 26,08t¢ $100,82 $ 154,23
Purchases of property and equipm $ 1,571 $ 44 $ 2,49« $ 411f
Payments associated with capitalized software devednt $ 572 $ 34t $ — $ 6,06f

Year ended December 31, 2010

Learning Research Unallocatec Consolidatec

Revenues, net $ 45,16! $ 20,58¢ $ — $ 65,75¢
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin) 13,52¢ 10,66 — 24,19
Product developmel 5,48¢ 1,50t — 6,98¢
Sales and marketir 8,31( 4,37 372 13,05¢
Other general and administrati 1,86¢ 1,82¢ 5,891 9,581
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,89¢ 1,252 1,732 4,88(
Total income from operatior $ 14,08( $ 974 $ (7,995 $ 7,05¢
*Segment asse $ 18,73 $ 26,70: $ 36,57¢ $ 82,01
Purchases of property and equipm $ 1.17C $ 40 $ 1,05Z $ 2,62/
Payments associated with capitalized software dgwetnt $ 1,79t $  24¢ $ — $ 2,04«
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9. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2009

Learning Researct Unallocatec Consolidatec

Revenues, net $38,15¢ $19,24¢ $ — $ 57,39¢
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin) 11,94t 9,39¢ — 21,34
Product developmel 5,231 1,054 — 6,28¢
Sales and marketir 7,31¢ 3,32t 287 10,93(
Other general and administrati 1,78t 1,862 4,932 8,57¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,83: 982 2,324 5,13¢
Total income from operatior $10,04: $ 2,62: $ (7,549 $ 5,127
*Segment asse $18,18¢ $26,21( $ 26,60 $ 71,00:
Purchases of property and equipm $ 1,132 $ 16€ $ 487 $ 1,78
Payments associated with capitalized software devednt $ 784 $ 49¢ $ — $ 1,28

* Segment assets include accounts and unbilledvaales, prepaid and other current assets, ottsetacapitalized software development,
certain property and equipment, and intangibletas€ash and cash equivalents and marketable Sesumie not allocated to individual
segments, and are included within Unallocated.ghificant portion of property and equipment asse¢sincluded within Unallocate

10. INCOME TAXES
The provision (benefit) for income taxes is comgdif the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Current federal $ 165 $ 14¢€ $ 11€
Current statt 214 65 11C
Deferred federe 3,72 2,51¢ (8,13%)
Deferred stat 304 15¢ (957)
Provision (benefit) for income tax $4,40¢ $2,88¢ $(8,86%)

A reconciliation of income taxes at the statut@sgtdral income tax rate to the provision (benedit)ifcome taxes included in the accompan
consolidated statements of income is as followshi@usands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Federal tax provision at the statutory rate $3,97% $2,391 $ 1,73¢
State income tax provision, net of federal ber 337 30¢ 20z
Other 95 184 22¢
Decrease in valuation allowan — — (11,037
Provision (benefit) for income tax $4,40¢ $2,88¢ $ (8,86%)

Management periodically assesses the realizabiitis deferred tax assets, and to the extentahmatovery is not likely, a valuation allowance
is established to reduce the deferred tax asshetamount estimated to be recoverable. During 20@9valuation allowance decreased $11.0
million, of which $9.1 million was associated witie Company’s conclusion that substantially ait®fieferred tax assets will be realized in
future periods. At December 31, 2011, a valuatitoweance of $1.1 million exists for the remainingrpon of deferred tax assets, which are
comprised of the portion of net operating lossyfarwards attributable to the exercises of stockams. Any future reductions of the valuation
allowance associated with this deferred tax assetdwbe recognized as an increase to common stock.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had fededhbktate net operating loss carryforwards of $14lkom and $12.6 million, respectively.
These loss carryforwards will expire in years 2€irdugh 2024. As of December 31, 2011, $5.1 milbéthe net operating loss carryforwards
is attributable to the exercise of stock optioms] d realized, the tax benefit will be recordedaasincrease to common stock. The net operating
loss carryforwards may be subject to annual lindtet under Internal Revenue Code Section 382. Thaal limitations could result in the
expiration of a portion of net operating loss aaxid¢redit carryforwards before they are fully atd.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

10. INCOME TAXES (continued)

The Company has research and development tax cegdyforwards of $300,000 that expire in varyimgyaants through 2031. As of
December 31, 2011, the Company had alternativenmoimi tax credit carryforwards of $532,000 that ar@lable to offset future regular tax
liabilities and they do not expire. Federal incatare payments of $194,000, $191,000 and $95,000 wde during the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectivedye $icome tax payments of $193,000, $177,000$&814¢D00 were made during the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, resplgctive

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company’salatated balance sheets did not reflect a lighitit uncertain tax positions, nor any
accrued penalties or interest associated with irctax uncertainties. The Company is subject toriretaxation at the federal and various state
levels. The Company is subject to U.S. federakteaminations for tax years 2007 through 2011. loassyforwards and credit carryforwards
generated or utilized in years earlier than 20@7ads0 subject to examination and adjustment. Tdragainy has no income tax examinations in
process.

Deferred federal and state income taxes reflechéteéax effects of temporary differences betwéencarrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounégidsr income tax purposes. Significant componehtieferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2011 2010
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 59 $ 6C
Accrued liabilities 777 754
Depreciatior 83 31¢
Tax credits 83¢ 647
Stock based compensati 337 20¢€
Net operating loss carryforwar 5,68: 9,281
Total deferred tax asse 7,772 11,267
Less: Valuation allowanc (1,099 (1,099
Net deferred tax asse 6,67¢ 10,17¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Deductible goodwil 1,11c 674
Nondeductible intangible ass¢ 563 71€
Tax basis in joint ventur 24¢€ —
Total deferred tax liabilitie 1,922 1,39(
Net deferred tax asse $ 4,757 $ 8,78¢
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

11. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

Total stock based compensation expense recordededhree years ended December 31, 2011, whigtasded in our statements of income,
is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amatitin) $ 41 $ 37 $ 23
Product developmel 17¢ 12¢ 113
Sales and marketir 104 162 20C
Other general and administrati 464 337 32E
Total stock based compensation expe $ 78¢ $ 664 $ 661

Stock Option Plan

The Company’s 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (the Péarthorizes the grant of options or other formstoéls based compensation to employees,
officers, directors and others, and such grants beispproved by the Compensation Committee oBthard of Directors. Options granted
under the Plan have terms of no more than ten yed@tscertain restrictions. The Plan allows ther@ensation Committee of the Board of
Directors to determine the vesting period and patans of each grant. The vesting period of theomgtgranted has historically ranged from
immediate vesting to annual vesting up to four gebeginning one year after the grant date. Aseafdnber 31, 2011, approximately

1.0 million shares of unissued common stock renthieserved for future stock option grants undeta. The Company issues new shares
of common stock when options are exercised.

The weighted average fair value of options gramtad estimated using the Black-Scholes method. &hges of assumptions used for these
estimates include:

2011 2010 2009
Risk-free interest rate 1.05- 2.3% 1.88- 2.4% 1.73- 3.22%
Expected dividend yiel 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Expected life (in years 5t07 5to i 5to0 7
Expected forfeiture rat 0-5% 0-1C% 0-20%
Volatility 50% 55% 60%

Risk-free interest rates based on the U.S. Treasury rate in effect atithe of the option grant having a term equivalerthe expected life of
the option.

Expected dividend yiel® zero because the Company has not made any divjgyments in its history and does not plan togiaiglends in
the foreseeable future.

Expected lifeis the period of time the option is expected toasmnoutstanding, and is based on historical expeeeThe contractual option life
ranges from eight to ten years. The Company estiniite expected life of options granted to membEmanagement to be five years and
seven years for directors.

Expected forfeiture ratis the estimated percentage of options grantedatfeanot expected to become fully vested. Thisredg is based on
historical experience, and will be adjusted as semg to match the actual forfeiture experience.

Volatility is the measure of the amount by which the priepgected to fluctuate. The Company estimated Vityabased on the actual
historical volatility of the Company’s common stoelkd management believes future volatility willdsmilar to the Company’s historical
volatility experience.

The Company amortizes the fair value of all stoakdnl awards, net of estimated forfeitures, onadgsti-line basis over the requisite service
period, which generally is the vesting period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

11. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

A summary of activity and various other informati@tative to stock options for the year ended Ddwam31, 2011 is presented in the table
below (in thousands, except exercise price).

Weighted-

Aggregate
Common Average
Exercise Intrinsic
Shares Price Value
Outstanding at beginning of period 2,42¢ $ 2.9¢
Granted 363 9.4¢€
Exercisec (509) 2.47
Expired (5) 1.6€
Forfeited (76) 4.4E
Outstanding at end of peri 2,20t $ 4.1z $31,60!
Exercisable at end of peric 1,347 $ 3.0¢ $20,70¢

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total difference between the Comgaeigsing stock price on December 30, 2
(the last trading day of the year) of $18.45 areldftion exercise price, multiplied by the numbienethe-money options as of December 31,
2011. As of December 31, 2011, total unrecognizedpensation expense related to non-vested stoadnspias approximately $1.7 million,
net of estimated forfeitures, with a weighted ageraxpense recognition period of 2.4 years. Thghted average remaining contractual term
of options outstanding at December 31, 2011 wayda®s. Options exercisable at December 31, 2014 aaveighted average remaining
contractual term of 3.3 years. The Company real2H000 of excess tax benefits during the yeae@mkcember 31, 2011.

Other information relative to option activity dugithe three years ended December 31, 2011 islagv/éo(in thousands, except weighted
average grant date fair value):

2011 2010 2009
Weighted average grant date fair value of stocloaptgrantet $ 4.67 $2.1F $1.17
Total grant date fair value of stock options ves $ 644 $ 58¢ $531
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercis $4,53¢ $63¢ $ 54¢
Cash proceeds from exercise of stock opt $1,241 $53€ $42¢

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

401(k) Plan

The Company has a definedntribution employee benefit plan (401(k) Plargarporating provisions of Section 401(k) of theshmial Revent
Code. Employees must have attained the age of @hawe completed thirty days of service to be blgto participate in the 401(k) Plan.
Under the provisions of the 401(k) Plan, a plan tmemmay make contributions, on a tax-deferred basisto exceed 20% of compensation,
subject to IRS limitations. The Company has novjated matching contributions through December 31,12

13. DEBT
At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company hachbalitstanding.

Revolving Credit Facility

The Company maintains a Loan Agreement (the “ReénglCredit Facility”) with SunTrust Bank (“SunTrusin the aggregate principal
amount of $20.0 million, which matures on July 2@12. The obligations under the revolving crediilfty are guaranteed by each of the
Company'’s subsidiaries. The Company’s borrowingseuithe revolving credit facility bear interestla 30Day LIBOR Rate plus a margin
either 175 or 200 basis points determined in a@wrd with a pricing grid. Principal is payable utl bn the maturity date. The Company is
required to pay a commitment fee of 25 basis pgirtsannum of the average daily unused portioh@févolving credit facility.

The purpose of the revolving credit facility is fipeneral working capital needs, permitted acqoisgi(as defined in the Loan Agreement), and
for stock repurchase and/or redemption transactiweitsthe Company may authorize.
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13. DEBT (continued)

The revolving credit facility contains certain coagts that, among other things, restrict additiaméébtedness, liens and encumbrances,
changes to the character of the Company’s busiaegsisitions, asset dispositions, mergers anddioiasions, sale or discount of receivables,
creation or acquisitions of additional subsidiareasd other matters customarily restricted in sagfeements.

In addition, the revolving credit facility requirése Company to meet certain financial tests, iiclg, without limitation:
« amaximum total leverage ratio (consolidated debiolidated EBITDA) of 2.0 to 1.(
« funded debt to total capitalization may not excéeo; anc
« tangible net worth may not be less than $:

As of December 31, 2011, the Company believes stiwaompliance with all covenants. There were alafices outstanding on the revolving
credit facility as of December 31, 2011.

14. LEASES

As of December 31, 2011, the Company leased dfdficéities in Nashville, TN and Laurel, MD underragments that expire before or during
April 2017. Some lease agreements contain prowssionescalating rent payments over the initiahteof the lease. The Company account
these leases by recognizing rent expense on gtgtiae basis and adjusting the deferred rent esgdiability for the difference between the
straight-line rent expense and the amount of raitt. @ he Company also leases certain office equipmmeder operating leases. Total rent
expense under all operating leases was approxiysited million, $1.8 million, and $1.5 million, fahe years ended December 31, 2011, Z
and 2009, respectively.

Future rental payment commitments at December @11 2nder non-cancelable operating leases, witlaliberms of one year or more, are as
follows (in thousands):

2012 $1,37i
2013 1,311
2014 97¢
2015 931
2016 937
Thereaftel 312
Total minimum lease paymer $5,84¢

15. LITIGATION

In the ordinary course of business, the Compaifipia time to time involved in various pending legations. The litigation process is
inherently uncertain and it is possible that threohation of such matters might have a material esbseffect upon the financial condition and /
or results of operations of the Company. Howevethe opinion of the Company’s management, matienently pending or threatened
against the Company are not expected to have aialadverse effect on the financial position wukes of operations of the Company.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcédunting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

HealthStream'’s chief executive officer and printijy@ancial officer have reviewed and evaluated ¢ffectiveness of the Compamsydisclosur
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 18a}Hnd 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Secuiitiehange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”)) as of December 31, 2011. Based on that etadn, the chief executive officer and principaldcial officer have concluded that
HealthStream’s disclosure controls and proceduese wffective to ensure that the information regghito be disclosed by the Company in the
reports the Company files or submits under the BRgk Act is recorded, processed, summarized amdteelwithin the time periods specified
in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rutelsfarms, and the information required to be disetbin the reports the Company files or
submits under the Exchange Act was accumulate¢aminunicated to the Company’s management, incluigéngrincipal executive and
principal financial officer, or persons performisignilar functions, as appropriate to allow timebctsions regarding required disclosure.

Management’'s Report On Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act, and for aiisgshe effectiveness of internal control oveafinial reporting. The Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is designed topde reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilifjnancial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with GAAP. The Company'’s internal control iofireancial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to thenteaance of records that, in reasonable detaiyrately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) ideweasonable assurance that transactions aneleecas necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with GAAP, drad teceipts and expenditures of the Company ang lmeade only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of t@any; and (3) provide reasonable assurance iieggptevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ef @ompany’s assets that could have a materialteffethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agect to the risk that controls may become inadézjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgtapaternal control over financial reporting asl@écember 31, 2011. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria sebfpttie Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission (COSO) in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Managemeassessment included an evaluation of the desigarahternal control over financial
reporting and testing of the operational effectessnof our internal control over financial repggtiManagement believes that, as of
December 31, 2011, the Company’s internal contvel dinancial reporting was effective based on ¢hosteria. The Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm, Ernst & YoungR,Lhas issued an audit report on the Company’'miateontrol over financial reporting,
which appears in Item 8 of this Annual Report onnrd.0-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in HealthStream’s internatrabover financial reporting that occurred durihg fourth quarter of 2011 that have
materially affected, or that are reasonably likelynaterially affect, HealthStream’s internal cohwver financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

Information as to directors of the Company and coafe governance is incorporated by reference franinformation contained in our 2012
proxy statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of hatders (2012 Proxy Statement) that we will fildhmthe Securities and Exchange

Commission within 120 days of the end of the fisezr to which this report relates. Pursuant toegeaninstruction G(3), certain information
concerning executive officers of the Company iduded in Part | of this Form 10-K, under the capti&xecutive Officers of the Registrant.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation
Incorporated by reference from the information egm¢d in the Company’s 2012 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners adMbBnagement and Related Stockholder Matters
Incorporated by reference from the information egmtd in the Company’s 2012 Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence
Incorporated by reference from the information egmé¢d in the Company’s 2012 Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Incorporated by reference from the information eimtd in the Company’s 2012 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a)(1) Financial Statements
Reference is made to the financial statementsdeclun Item 8 to this Report on Form 10-K.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are notagtyé or the required information is shown in @ensolidated Financial Statements or
the notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits

Number Description
2.10 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2&,280and among HealthStream, Inc., Mel B. Thompswh Date
Management & Research, Ir
2.2 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 1Z,,280and among HealthStream, Inc., The Jacksoartizgtion,
Research Consultants, Inc., David Jackson andaitiesdn Charitable Remainder Tr
3.1 Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftH8tkeam, Inc
3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam
4.1 Form of certificate representing the common stackpar value per share, of HealthStream,
4.2" Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and
10.1~ 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri|] 2000
10.2"® 2010 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of May 2710
10.3™ Form of Indemnification Agreeme
10.4"® Executive Employment Agreement, dated July 21, 26@Bveen HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Fris
10.5"@ Form of HealthStream, Inc. N-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Employe
10.6"@ Form of HealthStream, Inc. Incentive Stock Optiagréement (Employee
10.7°* Form of HealthStream, Inc. N-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Directo
10.8®) Loan Agreement dated July 21, 2006 between Hea#hBt, Inc. and SunTrust Ba
10.96) First Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Februar@67 between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |
10.10M Second Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July @37 Between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |
10.11® Third Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July 1D92fetween HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust E
10.12a10) Fourth Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Marc28@;1 between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |
10.13 Summary of Director and Executive Officer Compeiuse
211 Subsidiaries of HealthStream, It
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Purstiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
321 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
101.1 INS™ XBRL Instance Documer
101.1 SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schen
101.1 CAL™ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba
101.1 DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkba:
101.1 LAB™ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba

101.1 PRE" XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkb:



*

*%

AN

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on For-1, as amended (Reg. No. -88939).

The XBRL-related information in Exhibit No. 10tb this Annual Report on Form 10-K is furnished awd filed for purposes of
Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1938 %&ction 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1

Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagt

Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 29, 200!

Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 12, 200

Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formn-K, dated July 25, 200!

Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated June 1, 201

Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Form-K, dated July 25, 200t

Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forn-K, dated February 20, 200

Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Form-K, dated July 24, 200°

Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Form-K, dated July 17, 200!

Incorporated by reference to Appendix B of the Cany's Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SEC/Avpril 29, 2010.
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 30, 201.

54



Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regidthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized on this 28th day of February, 2012.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

By: /s/ ROBERTA. FRrisT, JR.

Robert A. Frist, Jr
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed &éydhowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated:

Signature

/s/ RoBERTA. FRIST, JR.

Robert A. Frist, Jr

/s/ GERARDM. H AYDEN, JR.

Gerard M. Hayden, J

/s/ THoMPSOND ENT

Thompson Den

/s/ FRANK G ORDON

Frank Gordor

/s/ C. MARTIN H ARRIS

C. Martin Harris

/s/ JEFFREYL. M cL AREN

Jeffrey L. McLarer

/s/ DALE P oOLLEY

Dale Polley

/s/ L INDA R EBROVICK

Linda Rebrovick

/s/ M ICHAEL S HMERLING

Michael Shmerling

/s/ WILLIAM S TEAD

William Stead

/s/ DEBORAHT AYLOR T ATE

Deborah Taylor Tat

Title(s) Date

President, Chief Executive Officer a February 28, 201
Chairman (Principal Executive Office

Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Presid February 28, 201
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

Director February 28, 201
Director February 28, 201
Director February 28, 201
Director February 28, 201
Director February 28, 201
Director February 28, 201
Director February 28, 201
Director February 28, 201
Director February 28, 201
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description
2.10 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2&,230and among HealthStream, Inc., Mel B. Thompswh Data
Management & Research, Ir
2.2 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 17, 230and among HealthStream, Inc., The Jacksoar@zgtion,
Research Consultants, Inc., David Jackson andaitiesdn Charitable Remainder Tr
3.1 Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftH8akam, Inc
3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam
4.1 Form of certificate representing the common stackpar value per share, of HealthStream,
4.2 Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and
10.1~ 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri|] 2000
10.2"® 2010 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of May 2710
10.3™ Form of Indemnification Agreeme
10.4'® Executive Employment Agreement, dated July 21, 208Bveen HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Fris
10.5"® Form of HealthStream, Inc. N-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Employe
10.6"@ Form of HealthStream, Inc. Incentive Stock Optiagréement (Employee
10.7"@ Form of HealthStream, Inc. N-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Directo
10.86) Loan Agreement dated July 21, 2006 between Hea#hBt, Inc. and SunTrust Ba
10.96) First Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Februan2@67 between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |
10.10M Second Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July 37 Between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |
10.11® Third Amendment to Loan Agreement dated July 1D920etween HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust E
10.12(0) Fourth Amendment to Loan Agreement dated Marci28@;1 between HealthStream, Inc. and SunTrust |
10.13 Summary of Director and Executive Officer Compeiuse
211 Subsidiaries of HealthStream, It
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursti@o Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursiido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
101.1 INS~ XBRL Instance Documer
101.1 SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schen
101.1 CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba
101.1 DEF~* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkba:
101.1 LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba
101.1 PRE" XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkb:
* Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on For-1, as amended (Reg. No. -88939).

** The XBRL-related information in Exhibit No. 10tb this Annual Report on Form 10-K is furnished aod filed for purposes of
Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1938 %ection 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1!

A Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagt

(1) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forn-K, dated March 29, 200!

(2) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 12, 200°

3) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated July 25, 200!

(4) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forn-K, dated June 1, 201

(5) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Form-K, dated July 25, 200t



(6) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated February 20, 200

@) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Form-K, dated July 24, 200°

(8) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forn-K, dated July 17, 200¢

9 Incorporated by reference to Appendix B of the Cany's Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SECApril 29, 2010.
(10) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forr-K, dated March 30, 201



EXHIBIT 10.1¢
HealthStream, Inc. (the “Company”)
Summary of Director and Executive Officer Compensdbn

I. Director Compensation. Directors who are employees of the Company daetstive additional compensation for serving asatars of the
Company. The following table sets forth currenesadf cash compensation for the Company’s non-erapldirectors.

Retainers and Fee: 2011

Annual Retainer fee $2,00(
Board meeting fe $1,00(
Committee chair meeting fe $1,00(¢
Committee member meeting f $ 50C

In addition to the cash compensation set forth apeach non-employee director is eligible to ree@wnondiscretionary annual grant of a
non-qualified option for the purchase of 15,000rehaf the Company’s common stock. The option&atgd in connection with our Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, vests over a three ya@wgeand has an exercise price equal to the faiket value of the stock on the grant date.

Il. Executive Officer Compensation. The following table sets forth the current baslarses and the fiscal 2011 performance bonusesded
to our executive officers, including the individsalho the Company expects to be its Named ExecQtfieers for 2012.

Fiscal

2011
Current Bonus

Executive Officer Salary Amount
Robert A. Frist, Jr $245,00( $85,75(
Arthur E. Newmar $225,00( $78,75(
J. Edward Pearsc $232,50( $81,37¢
Gerard M. Hayden, J $221,00( $77,35(
Jeffrey S. Doste $221,00( $77,35(
Michael Sous: $185,00( $18,50(

[ll. Additional Information . The foregoing information is summary in naturedfional information regarding Director and Nant&xkcutive
Officer compensation will be contained in the Comyga 2012 Proxy Statement.



SUBSIDIARIES OF HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

Names Under Which We Do Busine

Data Management & Research, |
The Jackson Organization, Research Consultants
HealthStream Acquisition I, Ini

HealthStream Acquisition II, In

State or Other
Jurisdiction of
Incorporation ¢

Organizatior
Tennesse
Maryland
Tennesse

Tennesse

EXHIBIT 21.1



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdlewing Registration Statements:

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-16724ftpjreng to the 2010 Stock Incentive Plan of He&tteam, Inc., Registration Statement
(Form S-8 No. 333-37440) pertaining to the 1994 exyge Stock Option Plan, 2000 Stock Incentive Rlad Employee Stock Purchase Plan
of HealthStream, Inc., and Registration Statemieatri S-3 No. 333-175863); of our reports dated &adyr 28, 2012, with respect to the
consolidated financial statements of HealthStrdam, and the effectiveness of internal controlrdirgancial reporting of HealthStream, Inc.,
included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Héx8tream, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2011.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
February 28, 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Robert A. Frist, Jr., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of HealthStream, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep
4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared
b) Designed such internal control over financiglaring, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;
c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntais report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teg’s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regisir's internal control over financial reporting;dan
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvel financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signiffole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: February 28, 201 /s| ROBERTA. FRIST, JR.

Robert A. Frist, Jr
Chief Executive Office



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Gerard M. Hayden, Jr., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of HealthStream, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep
4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared
b) Designed such internal control over financiglaring, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;
c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntais report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teg’s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regisir's internal control over financial reporting;dan
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvel financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signiffole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: February 28, 201 /s| GERARDM. H AYDEN , JR.

Gerard M. Hayden, J
Chief Financial Office



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthStrednc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadeng December 31, 2011, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ort#te hereof (the “Report”), Robert A. Frist, Jhi& Executive Officer of the Company
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopteduant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20&;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company

/s ROBERTA. FRIST, JR.
Robert A. Frist, Jr

Chief Executive Office
February 28, 201




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthStrednc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeadeng December 31, 2011, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ortétte hereof (the “Report"fzerard M. Hayden, Jr., Chief Financial Officer lo& tCompan
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopteduant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20&:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company

/s| GERARDM. H AYDEN , JR.
Gerard M. Hayden, J

Chief Financial Office!
February 28, 201




